
AGENDA – Administration Committee 
Thursday, October 17, 2024    6:15 PM 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 2 | 

I. Roll Call

II. Approval of the September 19, 2024 Administration Committee Minutes

RECOMMENDED MOTION: To approve the Minutes of September 19, 2024 Administration 
Committee Meeting of the DuPage Water Commission. 

III. Ordinance O-7-24: An Ordinance Approving Amendments to the DuPage Water
Commission Bylaws regarding preference for Illinois Bidders.  Second Reading.

IV. Resolution No. R-55-24: A Resolution Authorizing and Ratifying the Disposal of Certain
Personal Property Owned by the DuPage Water Commission.

V. Resolution No. R-58-24:  A Resolution Retaining SPI Energy Group for Retail Electric
Supply Market Consulting Services, at a not to exceed cost of $16,000.

VI. Resolution No. R-60-24: A Resolution Approving a Water Purchase and Sale Agreement
with the Village of Oswego

VII. Resolution No. R-61-24: A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with
the Village of Oswego Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge

VIII. Resolution No. R-62-24: A Resolution Approving a Water Purchase and Sale with the
United City of Yorkville

IX. Resolution No. R-63-24: A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with
the United City of Yorkville Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge

X. Resolution No. R-64-24: A Resolution Approving a Water Purchase and Sale Contract
with the Village of Montgomery

1 of 570



  

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 2 of 2 | 
 
 

XI. Resolution No. R-65-24: A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement with 
the Village of Montogomery Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge  
 

XII. Resolution No. R-66-24: A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement 
Concerning Development of Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service  

 
XIII. Resolution No. R-67-24: A Resolution Approving an Intergovernmental Agreement 

Concerning Development of Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service  
 

XIV. Resolution No. R-68-24: A Resolution Approving an Amendment to the WaterLink 
Second Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement 

 
XV. Request for Board Action: To Authorize the General Manager to approve Requisition 

No. 79341 in the amount of approximately $61,000 to Hexagon (formerly Infor), in 
accordance with Article VIII of the DuPage Water Commission bylaws.   

 
XVI. Old Business  

 
XVII. New Business  

 
XVIII. Other 

 
XIX.  Adjournment  

 
                                             2 of 570



Minutes of a Meeting 
of the 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
DuPage Water Commission 

600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, Illinois 

September 19, 2024 
 

 

DuPage Water Commission 
600 E. Butterfield Road, Elmhurst, IL  60126-4642 | (630) 834-0100 | 1 of 2 | 

 

I. Commissioner Healy called the meeting to order at 6:16 PM.  
 

Commissioners in attendance: N. Cuzzone, J. Healy, D. Van Vooren, J. Zay  
 

Commissioners absent: K. Rush 
 

Also in attendance: P. May, D. Mundall 
 

II. Commissioner Cuzzone moved to approve the Minutes of the August 15, 2024 
Administration Committee Meeting, seconded by Commissioner Van Vooren, unanimously 
approved by a voice vote.    All aye, motion carried.   
 

III. Commissioner Van Vooren moved to Receive and Perform First Reading of Ordinance O-7-
24.  An Ordinance Approving Amendments to the DuPage Water Commission Bylaws 
regarding preference for Illinois Bidders.  Commissioner Van Vooren raised a question 
regarding how new joint-partnership Illinois companies would be addressed.  Chairman 
Zay assured him that all Illinois vendors would be given the provided opportunities if they 
are incorporated in Illinois as of the date of the bid announcement.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Cuzzone, unanimously approved by a voice vote, all aye, motion carried.   
 

IV. Commissioner Van Vooren made a motion to approve Resolution R-49-24.  Authorization 
for the General Manager to approve the renewal of the additional 1-year option 
agreement with Sikich LLP for human resource consulting and services at the DuPage 
Water Commission, at a cost of $250.00 per hour as needed. Seconded by Chairman Zay, 
all aye, motion carried.  
 

V. Commissioner Cuzzone made a motion to approve the Resolution No. R-51-24.  A 
Resolution Authorizing and Ratifying the disposal of certain personal property owned by 
the DuPage Water Commission.  Seconded by Commissioner Van Vooren unanimously 
approved by a voice vote.  All aye, motion carried.   
 

VI. Commissioner Van Vooren made a motion to approve the 2025 Schedule of Meetings, 
seconded by Chairman Zay.  All aye, motion carried.   
 
 

 
                                             3 of 570

mundall
Draft



| 2 of 2 | 

 

VII. Old Business  
 
No Old Business was offered.  

 
VIII. New Business 
 

No New Business was offered.  
 

IX. Other 
 

X. Adjournment  
 
Commissioner Healy moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:24 PM, seconded by 
Commissioner Van Vooren, unanimously approved by a voice vote.  All aye, motion carried.  
Meeting adjourned.    

 
 
 

 
                                             4 of 570



R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

Resolution #:  [ORDINANCE] O-7-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

        PDM      -   CAP  PDM 

Date: 

Description:  

Agenda Section:  

10/10/2024 

 By-Law Amendment to permit Illinois Bidder Preference 

 Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration 

Article VIII of the DuPage Water Commission by-laws describes the purchasing procedures for the 
Commission.  Section 11 of Article VIII and corresponding state law provides broad authority to the 
DWC Board for the award of a contracts; this authority is often utilized to ensure that DWC retains 
standardized components throughout our system (rather than “or-equal” elements) for critical 
infrastructure such as valves, and that we acknowledge and utilize proprietary systems, methods, and 
vendors to maintain infrastructure integrity and warranties (such as utilizing only CAT-authorized 
vendors to maintain the Caterpillar generators systems). 

The approaching WaterLink construction project along with other scheduled large-diameter pipeline 
projects in the region, will present an unusual demand on the qualified contractor pool and is likely to 
attract contractor interest from outside the region.  While DWC supports and encourages the largest 
degree of competition possible during the bidding process, it is equally important that we are well-
positioned to disqualify contractors with inadequate experience or work history.  While existing 
Section 11 purchasing authority provides a sound rationale to reject bids that are not in the best 
interest of the Commission, we believe this language could be strengthened by allowing the DWC to 
include an Illinois bidder’s preference.   

The recommended by-law changes do not require a local bidder preference for all DWC contracts, but 
only permits DWC specify it when we anticipate a benefit (such as for the WaterLink project).  It is also 
important to note that the recommended language does not require DWC to award a contract to a 
higher-cost local contractor, but simply provides a qualified Illinois contractor an opportunity to match 
the low-bid price from the out-of-state contractor if the bids are within 4%. 

 
                                             5 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Recommended Motion: 

This Ordinance presents a modification to the DWC By-Laws and requires two readings.  It is presented 
for consideration at the 9/19/2024 Board of Commissioners meeting with a recommendation that it 
be included on the 10/17/2024 Board of Commissioners meeting for approval. 

 

 

 
                                             6 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

ORDINANCE NO. O-7-24 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION BYLAWS 
REGARDING PREFERENCE FOR ILLINOIS BIDDERS 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission (the “Commission”) was formed and exists pursuant 

to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the 

Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and 

supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission previously adopted Bylaws for the management and operation of the 

Commission, including purchasing procedures, which Bylaws have been amended from time to time; 

WHEREAS, the Commission has determined that the Bylaws should be amended to incorporate a 

preference for Illinois bidders when specified; 

WHEREAS, the Commission conducted a first reading of the amended Bylaws on September 19, 

2024 and a second reading on October 17, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission to approve the 

amendment of Article VIII of the Bylaws. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  Article VIII of the Bylaws regarding Purchasing Procedures is Amended as set forth 

on Exhibit 1 attached hereto and incorporated herein.   

 
                                             7 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 

SECTION THREE:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D. 

Cuzzone, N. 

Fennell, J. 

Novotny, D. 

Pruyn, J. 

Romano, K. 

Rush, K. 

Russo, D. 

Saverino, F. 

Suess, P. 

Van Vooren, D. 

Zay, J. 

ADOPTED THIS ______________ DAY OF ___________________, 2024. 

________________________________ 
James Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 

VACANT

 
                                             8 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 
 

 
                                             9 of 570



ARTICLE VIII 

PURCHASING PROCEDURES 

Section 1: Coverage. These procedures shall cover all contracts for supplies, 

material or work being purchased by the Commission except as herein set forth. 

Section 2: Definitions.  For the purpose of these procedures, “supplies, material or 

work” shall mean and include, except as hereinafter limited, all work, labor or services; 

other contracts for services; supplies, equipment or other materials; and the rental, repair 

or maintenance of equipment, machinery and other personal property.  The term “work” 

shall not include services rendered in a professional capacity such as accounting, 

engineering or legal services. 

Section 3: Minor Purchases.  The General Manager shall have the authority to 

purchase on behalf of the Commission supplies, material or work requiring an expenditure 

of the sum provided for in 65 ILCS 5/8-9-1 or less pursuant to such procedures as he or 

she deems calculated to insure the best interests of the Commission, without a specific 

solicitation of quotations or advertisement for bids. 

Section 4: Purchases Requiring Quotations.  All purchases of supplies, material or 

work included in the Annual Management Budget and requiring expenditure in excess of 

the sum provided for in 65 ILCS 5/8-9-1 shall be made only after the solicitation of at least 

two written quotations.  All such quotations shall be submitted sealed to the Commission 

and shall be opened in public at a date and time set by the General Manager.  A tabulation 

of all quotations received shall be presented to the Board of Commissioners.  In cases 

where only one quotation is received, there is only a single source for the supplies, 

materials or work or the purchase was not included in the Annual Management Budget, 

 
                                             10 of 570



the expenditure may only be authorized by the Board of Commissioners.  The General 

Manager shall keep a record of all such purchases and the quotations submitted pursuant 

to the solicitation therefor. 

Section 5: Other Contracts.  All contracts, except those provided for in Section 3 

and Section 4 of this Article VIII shall be entered into only after advertising for bids in the 

manner required by the Water Commission Statute. 

Section 6: Bid Deposits.  When deemed necessary by the General Manager or 

Board of Commissioners, bid deposits shall be required. 

Section 7: Specifications.  The following shall apply to specifications. 

a. Specifications shall be available to all bidders; 

b. Specifications shall be general in nature and not so specific as to 

limit a bidder to a specific brand; and 

c. The Commission shall reserve the right to make clarifications, 

corrections or changes in specifications at any time prior to the time 

bids are opened so long as all bidders or prospective bidders are 

informed of said clarifications, corrections or changes in the 

specifications. 

Section 8: Bid Opening Procedure. 

a. Sealed.  Bids shall be submitted sealed to the Commission and shall 

be identified as bids on the envelopes.  The date and time the bid 

was received shall be recorded on the envelope of the bid. 

b. Opening.  Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place stated 

in the public notices. 

 
                                             11 of 570



c. Tabulation.  A tabulation of all bids received shall be available for 

public inspection. 

Section 9: Acceptance or Rejection of Bids.  Except when expressly and 

specifically limited by the terms of a particular bid solicitation, the Commission shall have 

the authority to accept the bid which, in its judgment, is the best bid and most favorable 

to the interests of the Commission and the public; to reject the low bid; to award to other 

than the lowest bidder; to accept any item of any bid; to reject any and all bids; to accept 

and incorporate corrections or clarifications following bid opening when to do so would 

not, in the Commission’s opinion, prejudice the bidding process or create any improper 

advantage to bidders; and to waive irregularities and informalities in any bid submitted or 

in the bidding process. 

Section 10: Bidders in Default to Commission.  The Commission shall not accept 

the bid of a contractor who is or has been in default on a contract with the Commission 

or in the payment of monies due to the Commission. 

Section 11: Award of Contract. 

a. Authority in Board of Commissioners.  The Board of Commissioners 

shall have the authority to award all contracts for the construction of 

the Commission’s water supply system. 

b. Awards.  Contracts shall be awarded to the bidder whose proposal 

is found to be in the best interests of the Commission.  In determining 

the bidder who is to receive the award, the Commission shall 

consider the following factors in addition to price: 

 
                                             12 of 570



(i) The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform 

the contract or provide the service required; 

(ii) Whether the bidder has the requisite facilities, plant, 

organization and staffing to enable the bidder to 

perform the contract or provide the service successfully 

and promptly, within the time specified, without delay 

or interference; 

(iii) The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, 

experience and efficiency of the bidder; 

(iv) The quality of the bidder’s performance of previous 

contracts or services; 

(v) The previous and existing compliance by the bidder 

with the laws and ordinances relating to the contract or 

services; 

(vi) The sufficiency of the financial resources and ability of 

the bidder to perform the contract or to provide the 

services; 

(vii) The quality, availability, adaptability and capabilities of 

the supplies, material or work to the particular use 

required; 

(viii) The ability of the bidder to provide future maintenance 

and service for the subject of the contract, if applicable; 

 
                                             13 of 570



(ix) Any other factor that the Commission may legally 

consider in determining the proposal that is in the best 

interests of the Commission; 

(x) If the contract is for “public works” as that term is 

defined in the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 

130/0.01 et seq.), the following factors shall also be 

considered: 

a. The ability of the bidder to provide future 

maintenance and service for the subject of the 

contract, if applicable; 

b. The bidder and its subcontractors must comply 

with all provisions of the Illinois Prevailing Wage 

Act, (820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq.), including 

wages, medical and hospitalization insurance 

and retirement for those trades covered under 

the Act; and  

c. The bidder and all bidder’s subcontractors must 

participate in active apprenticeship and training 

programs approved and registered with the 

United State Department of Labor’s Office of 

Apprenticeship for each of the trades of work 

contemplated under the contract. 

 
                                             14 of 570



(xi) Authority to specify a Ppreference For Qualified Illinois 

Bidders.  To the extent not prohibited by federal or state 

statute, regulation or law and notwithstanding any 

provisions of this Article VIII to the contrary, it shall be 

the policy of the Commission shall be empowered to 

specify a preference to procure goods and services 

from qualified Illinois bidders to the greatest extent 

possible.when deemed to be in the best interests of the 

Commission.  When the Commission specifies a 

preference for Illinois bidders in the procurement of 

goods and services, the following will apply: 

a. Applicability. This Section does not apply to any 

contract for any project for which the 

Commission has received or will receive federal 

funds for the project when receipt of such funds 

may be in conflict with federal law or federal 

regulation. 

b. Definition. As used in this Section, “qualified 

Illinois business” means a contractor that is 

operating and headquartered in Illinois and 

providing, at the time that an invitation for a bid 

or notice of contract opportunity is first 

 
                                             15 of 570



advertised, construction or construction-related 

professional services, and is operating as:  

i. a sole proprietor whose primary 

residence is in Illinois;  

ii. a business incorporated or organized 

as a domestic corporation under the 

Business Corporation Act of 1983 (805 

ILCS 5/1.01 et seq.);  

iii. a business organized as a domestic 

partnership under the Uniform 

Partnership Act of 1997 (805 ILCS 

206/100 et seq.);  

iv. a business organized as a domestic 

limited partnership under the Uniform 

Limited Partnership Act of 2001 (805 

ILCS 215/0.01 et seq);  

v. a business organized under the Limited 

Liability Company Act (805 ILCS 180/1-

1 et seq.); or  

vi. a business organized under the 

Professional Limited Liability Company 

Act (805 ILCS 185/1 et seq.);  

 
                                             16 of 570



vii. A joint venture in which each joint 

venturer satisfies one of the 

qualifications of i – vi above. 

c. Notice Of Intent To Match Low Bid.  If the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder is not a qualified 

Illinois bidder and if a qualified Illinois bidder has 

submitted a bid which is within four percent (4%) 

of the lowest responsive, responsible bidder for 

an item or bid, the qualified Illinois bidder shall 

be given written notice to that effect and may, 

within five (5) days from the date of such notice, 

provide written confirmation to the Commission 

that it will match the bid price of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder. The qualified 

Illinois bidder shall, where the bid is an 

aggregate of separate price components, 

reduce the price of each separate component of 

its aggregate bid by the same percentage that 

was used to match the bid of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder. If a qualified 

Illinois bidder fails to provide such written 

confirmation within the time allowed, its bid shall 

be considered as originally submitted. 

 
                                             17 of 570



d. Multiple Qualified Illinois bidders.  If more than 

one qualified Illinois bidder is within four percent 

(4%) of the lowest responsive, responsible 

bidder, only the qualified Illinois bidder 

submitting the lowest bid shall be given the 

opportunity to match the bid of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder.  The qualified 

Illinois bidder shall, where the bid is an 

aggregate of separate price components, 

reduce the price of each separate component of 

its aggregate bid by the same percentage that 

was used to match the bid of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder. 

e. Rejection of Bids.  The Commission may reject 

any and all bids and award the contract to a 

bidder other than the lowest responsive, 

responsible bidder or a qualified Illinois bidder 

who matches the lowest responsible bid upon 

the determination of the Commission that it is in 

the Authority's best interests to do so. 

f. Certification. A bidder shall certify in its bid or 

proposal whether it is a qualified Illinois bidder 

under this Code. 

 
                                             18 of 570



c. Subsequent Awards.  Contracts awarded to a bidder who fails to 

comply with all conditions precedent to formal execution of the 

contract agreement may be annulled.  Upon annulment of an award, 

the Commission may award the contract to any other bidder whose 

proposal is found to be in the best interests of the Commission in 

accordance with Subsection 11(b) above, or the Commission may 

advertise anew for bids. 

Section 12: Single Bids.  The Board of Commissioners desires competitive bids; 

however, where there is only one bid, that fact alone shall not prevent the Commission 

from accepting that bid. 

Section 13: Performance and Payment Bonds.  The Commission may require a 

performance bond before entering a contract in such amount as it shall find reasonably 

necessary to protect the best interests of the Commission.  The Commission shall require 

a payment bond in such amount as it shall find reasonably necessary to secure payment 

for material used and labor performed in connection with a public work. 

Section 14: Change Orders.  All contract change orders shall be considered and 

approved or disapproved by the Commission during the regular course of its conduct of 

business except in the following circumstances. 

a. By General Manager.  The General Manager shall have the authority 

to approve any contract change order: 

(i) based entirely upon approved unit prices; or 

(ii) In an amount not in excess of $100,000 when in the 

judgment of the General Manager and the 

 
                                             19 of 570



Commission’s consulting engineer such change order 

requires immediate approval to avoid significant 

impacts to the project schedule or the incurring of 

unnecessary and excessive costs by the Commission. 

A full written description and explanation of any change order so 

approved by the General Manager shall be distributed to the Board 

of Commissioners as soon as possible following its approval. 

b. By Commission at Special or Emergency Meeting.  When in the 

judgment of the General Manager a change order in an amount in 

excess of $100,000 requires a more immediate approval than the 

Commission’s regular meeting schedule would permit in order to 

avoid the incurring of significant impacts to the project schedule or 

unnecessary and excessive costs by the Commission, or when, in 

any other case, in the judgment of the General Manager a change 

order requires the immediate attention of the Commission, the 

General Manager may call a special or emergency meeting of the 

Commission for the consideration of such change order. 

Section 15: Prohibition Against Subdivision.  No contract or change order shall be 

subdivided to avoid the requirements of these By-Laws.  This prohibition shall not prevent 

the repetitive purchase of supplies, material or work which is purchased over a period of 

time as needed. 

Section 16: Emergencies.  In case of an apparent emergency which requires 

immediate purchase of supplies, material or work to protect persons or property, the 

 
                                             20 of 570



General Manager shall be authorized to secure any supplies, material or work necessary 

to address such emergency by whatever means deemed necessary without regard to the 

procedures otherwise required under these By-Laws.  A full written description and 

explanation of any such emergency purchase shall be distributed to the Board of 

Commissioners as soon as possible following the emergency. 

Section 17: Bid Item Must Be Budgeted.  Contracts or purchase orders cannot be 

executed and are invalid and void unless the amounts due there under have been 

budgeted by the Board of Commissioners. 

Section 18: Cooperative Purchasing Arrangements.  Nothing in this Article VIII 

shall be interpreted to prohibit the Commission from participating with other public bodies, 

associations or agencies, or with other units of government, in any cooperative 

purchasing arrangements subject to bidding or other processes that assure the protection 

of the best interests of the Commission.  Supplies, materials or work purchased through 

such arrangement shall be exempted from the requirements of this Article. 

 

 
                                             21 of 570



ARTICLE VIII 

PURCHASING PROCEDURES 

Section 1: Coverage. These procedures shall cover all contracts for supplies, 

material or work being purchased by the Commission except as herein set forth. 

Section 2: Definitions.  For the purpose of these procedures, “supplies, material or 

work” shall mean and include, except as hereinafter limited, all work, labor or services; 

other contracts for services; supplies, equipment or other materials; and the rental, repair 

or maintenance of equipment, machinery and other personal property.  The term “work” 

shall not include services rendered in a professional capacity such as accounting, 

engineering or legal services. 

Section 3: Minor Purchases.  The General Manager shall have the authority to 

purchase on behalf of the Commission supplies, material or work requiring an expenditure 

of the sum provided for in 65 ILCS 5/8-9-1 or less pursuant to such procedures as he or 

she deems calculated to insure the best interests of the Commission, without a specific 

solicitation of quotations or advertisement for bids. 

Section 4: Purchases Requiring Quotations.  All purchases of supplies, material or 

work included in the Annual Management Budget and requiring expenditure in excess of 

the sum provided for in 65 ILCS 5/8-9-1 shall be made only after the solicitation of at least 

two written quotations.  All such quotations shall be submitted sealed to the Commission 

and shall be opened in public at a date and time set by the General Manager.  A tabulation 

of all quotations received shall be presented to the Board of Commissioners.  In cases 

where only one quotation is received, there is only a single source for the supplies, 

materials or work or the purchase was not included in the Annual Management Budget, 

 
                                             22 of 570



the expenditure may only be authorized by the Board of Commissioners.  The General 

Manager shall keep a record of all such purchases and the quotations submitted pursuant 

to the solicitation therefor. 

Section 5: Other Contracts.  All contracts, except those provided for in Section 3 

and Section 4 of this Article VIII shall be entered into only after advertising for bids in the 

manner required by the Water Commission Statute. 

Section 6: Bid Deposits.  When deemed necessary by the General Manager or 

Board of Commissioners, bid deposits shall be required. 

Section 7: Specifications.  The following shall apply to specifications. 

a. Specifications shall be available to all bidders; 

b. Specifications shall be general in nature and not so specific as to 

limit a bidder to a specific brand; and 

c. The Commission shall reserve the right to make clarifications, 

corrections or changes in specifications at any time prior to the time 

bids are opened so long as all bidders or prospective bidders are 

informed of said clarifications, corrections or changes in the 

specifications. 

Section 8: Bid Opening Procedure. 

a. Sealed.  Bids shall be submitted sealed to the Commission and shall 

be identified as bids on the envelopes.  The date and time the bid 

was received shall be recorded on the envelope of the bid. 

b. Opening.  Bids shall be opened in public at the time and place stated 

in the public notices. 

 
                                             23 of 570



c. Tabulation.  A tabulation of all bids received shall be available for 

public inspection. 

Section 9: Acceptance or Rejection of Bids.  Except when expressly and 

specifically limited by the terms of a particular bid solicitation, the Commission shall have 

the authority to accept the bid which, in its judgment, is the best bid and most favorable 

to the interests of the Commission and the public; to reject the low bid; to award to other 

than the lowest bidder; to accept any item of any bid; to reject any and all bids; to accept 

and incorporate corrections or clarifications following bid opening when to do so would 

not, in the Commission’s opinion, prejudice the bidding process or create any improper 

advantage to bidders; and to waive irregularities and informalities in any bid submitted or 

in the bidding process. 

Section 10: Bidders in Default to Commission.  The Commission shall not accept 

the bid of a contractor who is or has been in default on a contract with the Commission 

or in the payment of monies due to the Commission. 

Section 11: Award of Contract. 

a. Authority in Board of Commissioners.  The Board of Commissioners 

shall have the authority to award all contracts for the construction of 

the Commission’s water supply system. 

b. Awards.  Contracts shall be awarded to the bidder whose proposal 

is found to be in the best interests of the Commission.  In determining 

the bidder who is to receive the award, the Commission shall 

consider the following factors in addition to price: 

 
                                             24 of 570



(i) The ability, capacity and skill of the bidder to perform 

the contract or provide the service required; 

(ii) Whether the bidder has the requisite facilities, plant, 

organization and staffing to enable the bidder to 

perform the contract or provide the service successfully 

and promptly, within the time specified, without delay 

or interference; 

(iii) The character, integrity, reputation, judgment, 

experience and efficiency of the bidder; 

(iv) The quality of the bidder’s performance of previous 

contracts or services; 

(v) The previous and existing compliance by the bidder 

with the laws and ordinances relating to the contract or 

services; 

(vi) The sufficiency of the financial resources and ability of 

the bidder to perform the contract or to provide the 

services; 

(vii) The quality, availability, adaptability and capabilities of 

the supplies, material or work to the particular use 

required; 

(viii) The ability of the bidder to provide future maintenance 

and service for the subject of the contract, if applicable; 

 
                                             25 of 570



(ix) Any other factor that the Commission may legally 

consider in determining the proposal that is in the best 

interests of the Commission; 

(x) If the contract is for “public works” as that term is 

defined in the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 

130/0.01 et seq.), the following factors shall also be 

considered: 

a. The ability of the bidder to provide future 

maintenance and service for the subject of the 

contract, if applicable; 

b. The bidder and its subcontractors must comply 

with all provisions of the Illinois Prevailing Wage 

Act, (820 ILCS 130/0.01 et seq.), including 

wages, medical and hospitalization insurance 

and retirement for those trades covered under 

the Act; and  

c. The bidder and all bidder’s subcontractors must 

participate in active apprenticeship and training 

programs approved and registered with the 

United State Department of Labor’s Office of 

Apprenticeship for each of the trades of work 

contemplated under the contract. 

 
                                             26 of 570



(xi) Authority to specify a preference For Qualified Illinois 

Bidders.  To the extent not prohibited by federal or state 

statute, regulation or law and notwithstanding any 

provisions of this Article VIII to the contrary, the 

Commission shall be empowered to specify a 

preference to procure goods and services from 

qualified Illinois bidders when deemed to be in the best 

interests of the Commission.  When the Commission 

specifies a preference for Illinois bidders in the 

procurement of goods and services, the following will 

apply: 

a. Applicability. This Section does not apply to any 

contract for any project for which the 

Commission has received or will receive federal 

funds for the project when receipt of such funds 

may be in conflict with federal law or federal 

regulation. 

b. Definition. As used in this Section, “qualified 

Illinois business” means a contractor that is 

operating and headquartered in Illinois and 

providing, at the time that an invitation for a bid 

or notice of contract opportunity is first 

 
                                             27 of 570



advertised, construction or construction-related 

professional services, and is operating as:  

i. a sole proprietor whose primary 

residence is in Illinois;  

ii. a business incorporated or organized 

as a domestic corporation under the 

Business Corporation Act of 1983 (805 

ILCS 5/1.01 et seq.);  

iii. a business organized as a domestic 

partnership under the Uniform 

Partnership Act of 1997 (805 ILCS 

206/100 et seq.);  

iv. a business organized as a domestic 

limited partnership under the Uniform 

Limited Partnership Act of 2001 (805 

ILCS 215/0.01 et seq);  

v. a business organized under the Limited 

Liability Company Act (805 ILCS 180/1-

1 et seq.); or  

vi. a business organized under the 

Professional Limited Liability Company 

Act (805 ILCS 185/1 et seq.);  

 
                                             28 of 570



vii. A joint venture in which each joint 

venturer satisfies one of the 

qualifications of i – vi above. 

c. Notice Of Intent To Match Low Bid.  If the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder is not a qualified 

Illinois bidder and if a qualified Illinois bidder has 

submitted a bid which is within four percent (4%) 

of the lowest responsive, responsible bidder for 

an item or bid, the qualified Illinois bidder shall 

be given written notice to that effect and may, 

within five (5) days from the date of such notice, 

provide written confirmation to the Commission 

that it will match the bid price of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder. The qualified 

Illinois bidder shall, where the bid is an 

aggregate of separate price components, 

reduce the price of each separate component of 

its aggregate bid by the same percentage that 

was used to match the bid of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder. If a qualified 

Illinois bidder fails to provide such written 

confirmation within the time allowed, its bid shall 

be considered as originally submitted. 

 
                                             29 of 570



d. Multiple Qualified Illinois bidders.  If more than 

one qualified Illinois bidder is within four percent 

(4%) of the lowest responsive, responsible 

bidder, only the qualified Illinois bidder 

submitting the lowest bid shall be given the 

opportunity to match the bid of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder.  The qualified 

Illinois bidder shall, where the bid is an 

aggregate of separate price components, 

reduce the price of each separate component of 

its aggregate bid by the same percentage that 

was used to match the bid of the lowest 

responsive, responsible bidder. 

e. Rejection of Bids.  The Commission may reject 

any and all bids and award the contract to a 

bidder other than the lowest responsive, 

responsible bidder or a qualified Illinois bidder 

who matches the lowest responsible bid upon 

the determination of the Commission that it is in 

the Authority's best interests to do so. 

f. Certification. A bidder shall certify in its bid or 

proposal whether it is a qualified Illinois bidder 

under this Code. 

 
                                             30 of 570



c. Subsequent Awards.  Contracts awarded to a bidder who fails to 

comply with all conditions precedent to formal execution of the 

contract agreement may be annulled.  Upon annulment of an award, 

the Commission may award the contract to any other bidder whose 

proposal is found to be in the best interests of the Commission in 

accordance with Subsection 11(b) above, or the Commission may 

advertise anew for bids. 

Section 12: Single Bids.  The Board of Commissioners desires competitive bids; 

however, where there is only one bid, that fact alone shall not prevent the Commission 

from accepting that bid. 

Section 13: Performance and Payment Bonds.  The Commission may require a 

performance bond before entering a contract in such amount as it shall find reasonably 

necessary to protect the best interests of the Commission.  The Commission shall require 

a payment bond in such amount as it shall find reasonably necessary to secure payment 

for material used and labor performed in connection with a public work. 

Section 14: Change Orders.  All contract change orders shall be considered and 

approved or disapproved by the Commission during the regular course of its conduct of 

business except in the following circumstances. 

a. By General Manager.  The General Manager shall have the authority 

to approve any contract change order: 

(i) based entirely upon approved unit prices; or 

(ii) In an amount not in excess of $100,000 when in the 

judgment of the General Manager and the 

 
                                             31 of 570



Commission’s consulting engineer such change order 

requires immediate approval to avoid significant 

impacts to the project schedule or the incurring of 

unnecessary and excessive costs by the Commission. 

A full written description and explanation of any change order so 

approved by the General Manager shall be distributed to the Board 

of Commissioners as soon as possible following its approval. 

b. By Commission at Special or Emergency Meeting.  When in the 

judgment of the General Manager a change order in an amount in 

excess of $100,000 requires a more immediate approval than the 

Commission’s regular meeting schedule would permit in order to 

avoid the incurring of significant impacts to the project schedule or 

unnecessary and excessive costs by the Commission, or when, in 

any other case, in the judgment of the General Manager a change 

order requires the immediate attention of the Commission, the 

General Manager may call a special or emergency meeting of the 

Commission for the consideration of such change order. 

Section 15: Prohibition Against Subdivision.  No contract or change order shall be 

subdivided to avoid the requirements of these By-Laws.  This prohibition shall not prevent 

the repetitive purchase of supplies, material or work which is purchased over a period of 

time as needed. 

Section 16: Emergencies.  In case of an apparent emergency which requires 

immediate purchase of supplies, material or work to protect persons or property, the 

 
                                             32 of 570



General Manager shall be authorized to secure any supplies, material or work necessary 

to address such emergency by whatever means deemed necessary without regard to the 

procedures otherwise required under these By-Laws.  A full written description and 

explanation of any such emergency purchase shall be distributed to the Board of 

Commissioners as soon as possible following the emergency. 

Section 17: Bid Item Must Be Budgeted.  Contracts or purchase orders cannot be 

executed and are invalid and void unless the amounts due there under have been 

budgeted by the Board of Commissioners. 

Section 18: Cooperative Purchasing Arrangements.  Nothing in this Article VIII 

shall be interpreted to prohibit the Commission from participating with other public bodies, 

associations or agencies, or with other units of government, in any cooperative 

purchasing arrangements subject to bidding or other processes that assure the protection 

of the best interests of the Commission.  Supplies, materials or work purchased through 

such arrangement shall be exempted from the requirements of this Article. 

 

 
                                             33 of 570



R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

Resolution #:  R-55-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

D.P.  RCB   CAP   PDM

Date: 10/10/2024 
Description:  A Resolution Authorizing and Ratifying the Disposal of Certain Personal 

Property Owned by the DuPage Water Commission 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Pipeline & Remote Facilities 

Resolution No. R-55-24 is a Resolution Authorizing and Ratifying the Disposal of Certain Personal 
Property Owned by the DuPage Water Commission. This Resolution authorizes the General Manager 
to dispose of the assets listed on Exhibit A to the Resolution in compliance with the DuPage Water 
Commission’s Vehicle Replacement Policy as these assets are beyond their useful life cycle, repair or 
refurbishment cost is prohibitive, and these assets are no longer useful to the Commission. 

The vehicle listed in Exhibit A will be listed up for auction at Obenauf Auction Service, Inc., an open 
to the public Government and Municipal Auction house serving the Midwest, Northern Illinois and 
Southern Wisconsin.  

Obenauf Auction Service, Inc. 
810 Magna Drive 

Round Late, IL. 60073 
847-546-2095

Estimated auction value of the 2017 Ford F150 is approximately $3,500. 

Recommended Motion:  

Adopt R-55-24, A Resolution Authorizing and Ratifying the Disposal of Certain Personal Property 
Owned by the DuPage Water Commission. 

 
                                             34 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Qty Serial Number Description Details 

1 1FTFX1EFpHKD76611 2017 Ford F150 XLT Pick-Up 
with 101,417 miles  

• Exceeds 100,000 miles and 
exceeds useful life.  

• Slated for replacement in 
FY-24/25 Management 
Budget 

 

 
                                             35 of 570



RESOLUTION NO. R-55-24 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND RATIFYING 
THE DISPOSAL OF CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY OWNED BY THE 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

WHEREAS, the DuPage Water Commission is authorized to sell or otherwise dispose of 

personal property pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-135-6; and 

WHEREAS, in the opinion of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission, 

the personal property described in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 

herein and made a part hereof (the “Property”) is no longer necessary or useful to or for the best 

interests of the DuPage Water Commission to retain or, if already disposed of, was not necessary or 

useful to or for the best interests of the DuPage Water Commission to retain; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby finds 

and determines that the Property is no longer necessary or useful to the DuPage Water Commission 

and the best interests of the DuPage Water Commission will be served by its disposal or, if already 

disposed of, was not necessary or useful to the DuPage Water Commission and the best interests of 

the DuPage Water Commission were served by its disposal. 

SECTION TWO The General Manager is hereby authorized to dispose of the Property in such 

manner as the General Manager shall determine or, if already disposed of, the Board of 

Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby ratifies and confirms its disposal.  

 
                                             36 of 570



SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

ADOPTED THIS ___ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 

________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk  
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-55-24.docx

Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D. 

Cuzzone, N. 

Fennell, J. 

VACANT  

Novotny, D. 

Pruyn, J. 

Romano, K. 

Rush, K. 

Russo, D. 

Saverino, F. 

Suess, P. 

Van Vooren, D. 

Zay, J. 

 
                                             37 of 570

mundall
Line



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-58-24 
Account:  01-60-62800 $16,000 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           RCB  RCB  CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 10/10/2024 

Description:  A Resolution Retaining SPI Energy Group for Retail Electric Supply 
Market Consulting Services 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Operations & Instrumentation  
 

SPI Energy Group is an energy market consultant that has been providing consulting services to the 
Commission in connection with the selection of an alternative electrical suppliers and the successful 
negotiation of the electrical supply agreements since 1997.  Staff desires to continue to retain the 
services of SPI Energy Group on an as-needed basis in connection with negotiating for the 
Commission’s electrical supply needs prior to the existing contract expiration on April 3, 2025. 

SPI Energy Group will seek out potential suppliers for the Illinois market, engage with each to procure 
their proposals to provide the most efficient and cost beneficial commodity pricing and then bring 
forth these pricing proposals for evaluation and recommendations to the Board to provide the 
electrical commodity for the DuPage Pump Station. 

The SPI Energy Group hourly rate is $250/hour with an estimated expense not-to-exceed $16,000 to 
receive alternative pricing from qualified alternate retail electrical service providers, perform pricing 
analysis of all proposals received, and engage in contract negotiations on behalf of the Commission 
when instructed to do so by the General Manager. 

Recommended Motion: 

Approve R-58-24, a resolution to retain the services of SPI Energy Group for Retail Electric Supply 
Market Consulting Services. 

 

 

 
                                             38 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-58-24 

A RESOLUTION RETAINING SPI ENERGY GROUP 
FOR ILLINOIS ELECTRIC MARKET CONSULTING SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Electric Service Customer Choice and Rate Relief Law (the “Law”) was 

enacted in December 1997 and deregulated the electrical industry; and  

WHEREAS, as allowed by the Law, the Commission entered into an electrical supply agreement 

with a retail electric supplier, which electrical supply agreement will expire on or about April 3, 2025; and 

WHEREAS, before extending the existing electrical energy supply agreement, the Commission 

would like to ensure that it will receive power and possibly other services at current or better market 

rates, terms and conditions; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission would also like to retain electric market consulting services as needed 

in the future due to developments in the Illinois electric supply market; and 

WHEREAS, SPI Energy Group is a consulting firm consisting of experienced electrical professionals 

with utility experience; and 

WHEREAS, SPI Energy Group has provided outstanding Illinois electric market consulting services 

to the Commission since 1997, including consulting services in connection with the Commission’s selection 

of the alternative electrical suppliers and the negotiation of the existing electrical supply agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission desires to obtain, and SPI Energy Group, desires to provide, Illinois 

electric market consulting services in connection with the extension of the existing electrical supply 

agreement and as needed in the future due to developments in the Illinois electric supply market; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows:  

SECTION ONE:  The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof as 

findings of the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission. 

SECTION TWO:  The DuPage Water Commission hereby retains SPI Energy Group to provide Illinois 

electric market consulting services in connection with the extension of the Commission’s existing electrical 

supply agreement and as needed in the future due to developments in the Illinois electric supply market, 

subject to a maximum total expenditure of $16,000 in Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

 

SECTION THREE:  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
                                             39 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2023. 

 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-58-24.docx 

 
                                             40 of 570

mundall
Line



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

DELETE PAGE IF NO ATTACHMENT 

 

 
                                             41 of 570



 
 
         providing electric and natural gas procurement and regulated ratemaking 

expertise and advice to clients since 1996 
 
 

2621 MONTEGA DRIVE 
SUITE D 

SPRINGFIELD, ILLINOIS 62704 
(217) 241-5388 

 
SPI Energy Group 

 
       Electric and Natural Gas marketers are reaching out to consumers and 

offering them various new products for their energy dollar.  As the 

industry becomes more and more complex, consumers will look for ways 

to adapt to, and take advantage of, the electric and natural gas 

marketplaces. 

       That's why SPI Energy Group was created. 

       SPI Energy Group is a consulting firm consisting of gas and electric 

utility professionals, with decades of utility experience.  We have 

extensive knowledge of the electric and gas markets, but do not own or 

sell energy, capacity, energy management systems, or engineering 

services.  Likewise, we do not take financial positions in electric or gas 

markets, we do not have any vested interest in power or natural gas 

suppliers.  As a result, we will direct bill you for our consulting fees. Our 

purpose is simply to advise clients on their best course of action regarding 

energy markets.  

  

 
                                             42 of 570



 
Energy Consulting Services 
 
Pricing strategies, regulation, and utility costing, contracts and service 

options are just a few of the issues that impact your energy future.  In an 

effort to provide value to clients, SPI Energy Group uses its expertise to 

advise: 

• utility companies, including cooperative and municipal systems, who 

want to market their services 

• parties with interest in legislative initiatives for opening of utility 

markets 

 
SPI Energy Group can assist with: 

• existing electric and natural gas marketplaces to take full advantage 

for your costs 

• regulation and utility costing 

• electric and natural gas service offerings 

• management of utility restructuring issues 

• contracts and customer service options 

 

 

 
                                             43 of 570



ICC Docket No. 13-0387 
CTA/Metra Joint Exhibit 1.0 

 

1 Direct Testimony of James G. Bachman 
 

2 On Behalf of 
 

3 Northeast Illinois Regional Commuter Railroad Corporation, d/b/a Metra and 

 
4 Chicago Transit Authority 

 
5 

 
6 

 
7 

 
8 Q.  PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME, TITLE, EMPLOYER AND BUSINESS 

9 ADDRESS. 
 

10 A. James G. Bachman, Partner, SPI Energy Group, 2621 Montega Drive, Springfield, 
 

11 Illinois 62704 
 

12 Q. 
 

13 A. 

ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU TESTIFYING IN THIS PROCEEDING? 
 

I am testifying on behalf of the Northeast Illinois Regional Commuter Railroad 

 

14 Corporation d/b/a Metra ("Metra") and the Chicago Transit Authority ("CTA"). 
 

15 Q. 
 

16 A. 

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE. 
 

I have worked in the electric and natural gas industry for forty-three years. For the last 

 

17 seventeen years I have been a Partner in SPI Energy Group. SPI Energy Group is an electric and 
 

18 natural gas consulting firm. We assist clients (retail end users of electricity and natural gas) in 
 

19 understanding and purchasing energy from the electric and natural gas marketplaces as end users. 
 
20 In addition, SPI Energy Group has assisted clients with their regulatory issues and requirements 

 
21 before the Illinois Commerce Commission. For the nineteen years prior to my work for SPI 

 
22 Energy Group, I was employed by Central lllinois Public Service Company ("CIPS") in several 

 
23 administrative and executive positions including Vice-President of Marketing, Vice-President of 

 
                                             44 of 570



ICC Docket No. 13-0387 
CTA/Metra Joint Exhibit 1.0 

 

24 Corporate Planning and Manager of the Rates and Regulatory Department. I had responsibility 
 

25 for cost of service studies, rate design and rate policy for CIPS from 1980 through 1992. Prior to 
 

26 my employment at CIPS, I held several staff positions with Wisconsin Electric Power Company 
 

27 where I started my electric and natural gas career in 1970. 
 

28 Q. 

29 A. 

WHAT IS YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND? 
 

I received a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from the University of Wisconsin- 

 

30 Madison in 1970. I received a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of 
 
31 Illinois-Champaign/Urbana in 1990. A copy of my resume is attached as CTA/Metra Joint 

 
32 Exhibit 1.01. 

 
33 Q. HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THE ILLINOIS COMMERCE 

 
34 COMMISSION ("ICC" OR “ COMMISSION") AND THE FEDERAL ENERGY 

 
35 REGULATORY COMMISSION ("FERC")? 

 
36 A. Yes, I testified before the ICC and FERC in every CIPS rate case docket from 1977 

 
37 through 1992 before the two regulatory agencies. I also testified for CTA and Metra in ComEd 

 
38 cases, ICC Docket Nos. 07-0566, 08-0532, 09-0263, 09-0407, 10-0467, 10-0527 and 11-0721. 

 

39 Q. 

40 A. 

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY? 
 

My testimony addresses service and Embedded Cost of Service Study (ECOSS) issues as these 

 

41 issues relate to the Railroad Delivery Class. In its filing ComEd presents several ECOSS that include cost 
 
42 allocation impacts on the Railroad Delivery Class's revenue requirement. Those areas and the Railroad 

 
43 Delivery Class's response are summarized as follows: 

 
44 • ComEd presents ComEd Exhibit 3.01 as the ECOSS that is the basis for the Rate 

 
45 Design Investigation (RDI) for its filing in this Docket.  This ECOSS that ComEd 

 
46 designates as the RDI ECOSS fails to account for the Commission directive to 

 

 
2  

                                             45 of 570



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CTA/Metra Joint Exhibit 1.01 

 
                                             46 of 570



 

 

JAMES G. BACHMAN 
 

WORK EXPERIENCE 
 

SPI Energy Group Inc. 
Springfield, Illinois 

 

Partner and Founder July 1996 to present 
Set up consulting firm with partners and developed client base to provide consultant services 
related to gas and electric markets. Advising utility and power supplier clients on getting into 
competitive marketplace. Representation of utility clients before Illinois, Missouri and Virginia 
regulatory commissions. Advising commercial and industrial clients on lower cost basis for 
utility bills. Services include contract negotiations, strategic planning, RFP processing and 
regulatory representation. 

 
Central Illinois Public Service Company and CIPSCO Investment Company 
Springfield, Illinois 

 

Vice President, Marketing December 1994 - July 1996 
Administrative and policy responsibility for Company's marketing function, including 
responsibility for bringing organization together and development of Corporate Marketing Plan 
consistent with Corporate strategic goals. The Marketing Team is made up of four areas: 
Customer Expansion and Retention, Marketing Programs, Wholesale Marketing and Marketing 
Services. Member of several corporate committees, including Strategic Planning, Business 
Process Re-engineering, Executive Committee and Wage and Salary. 

 
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer February 1993 - February 1995 (half-time) 
(CIPSCO Investment Company) 
Was responsible for generation and development of new investment approaches and ideas for 
Company's non-regulated investment subsidiary. Worked as a close-knit team with CFO and Vice 
President-Investments to revamp CIC passive investments and responsibility for setting up 
CIPSCO Venture Company. 

 

Vice President, Corporate Planning August 1989 - December 1994 
Administrative responsibility for Rates and Research and Corporate Planning Departments which 
had functional control over regulatory affairs, rate administration, customer research, economic 
cost analysis, demand and energy forecasting, service area econometric forecasting and financial 
model forecasting. Coordinated the Corporate Strategic Planning effort for the CEO and 
responsible for production of Corporate Strategic Plan. Lead policy witness in several regulatory 
proceedings before both the Illinois Commerce Commission and Federal Energy Regulatory 

 
                                             47 of 570



 

 

Commission and testified before several legislative committees. Chaired three "ad hoc" 
marketing teams from December 1993 through December 1994. 

 

Manager. Rates and Research Department February 1980 - August 1989 
Functional and technica1 responsibility for regulatory liaison, rate administration, cost of service, 
customer research and regulatory case coordination. Was lead technical witness in several cases 
before the Illinois Commerce Commission and Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. 
Corporate liaison and coordinator in anti-trust litigation that was filed against CIPS. 

Supervisor and Staff Positions in Rates & Research Department· June 1977 - February 1980 
Technical responsibility for cost of service rate design and customer research. 

 

Wisconsin Electric Power Company 
Milwaukee, WI June 1970 - June 1977 
• Various training and staff positions, involving cost analysis, cost of service and rate design. 

 
 

EDUCATION 
• Master of Business Administration, University of Illinois 
• Bachelor of Arts, Economics, University of Wisconsin 
• Public Utility Executive Program, University of Michigan 

 
 

PUBLIC APPEARANCES 
• Guest lecturer at several colleges and universities 
• Participated in radio and TV interviews 
• Guest speaker at civic groups in central and southern Illinois 

 
                                             48 of 570



EXHIBIT A 
 

SPI ENERGY GROUP 

DuPage Water Commission 
Power Supply RFP Process  

For Contract to Begin April 2025 
Schedule and Budget 

 
 
 

A. Plan for Initial Pricing 
1. Alternative terms of : 

i. 12 months 
ii. 24 months 

iii. 36 months 
2. Inform Power Suppliers  

i. Pricing request including terms and contacting party 
ii. Initial pricing alternatives due October 17th   

3. Initial Pricing Analysis 
i. Develop pricing comparison and conclusions 

ii. Presentation to DPWC team before October 30th 
a. Budget Estimate: 

• 8 to 10 hours 
• $2,000 to $2,500 

 
B. Based on Presentation Discussion, moving forward with additional prices from Power Suppliers 

1. Each month the Power Supplier Pricing analysis is extended 
i. Develop pricing comparison and conclusions on predetermined basis 

ii. Presentation to DPWC team, as needed 
a. Budget Estimate for each month extended: 

• 5 to 10 hours 
• $1,250 to $2,500 
• Maximum 4 months 

 
C. Contract Discussions for Power Supply 

1. Will be bridge between Power Supplier and DPWC 
2. See the Contract through to conclusion and signing 
3. Whenever pricing is agreed to. However, no later than first week in March 2025. 

a. Budget Estimate: 
• 10 to 14 hours 
• $2,500 to $3,500 

 
D. Budget Estimate Range 

1. Minimum Budget estimate $4,500 
2. Maximum Budget Estimate $16,000 
3. You never get billed for travel 

i. It is as if our office is right next to yours. 

 
                                             49 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-60-24, R-61-24, R-62-
24, R-63-24, R-64-24, and R-65-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

                         

 

 
Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) 
and Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink 
communities of Oswego, Yorkville, and Montgomery 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

I am pleased to present the WaterLink Customer Agreements for DWC Board consideration.  The 
WaterLink communities have been working toward a new water source for over 10 years after 
becoming aware of impending water scarcity in the aquifer which provides their current supply.  After 
extended study, the WaterLink partners (Oswego, Montgomery, and Yorkville), identified Lake 
Michigan source water delivered by the DuPage Water Commission as the preferred future source.  
This project will be one of the largest water projects in the Midwest, and will extend the DWC service 
area into Kendall counties with DWC water transmission infrastructure extending west of the Fox River 
upon completion. 

The WaterLink communities have received IDNR allocations and have worked with DWC to fund Phase 
I and Phase II engineering over the last two years.  During this period of time, the WaterLink 
communities have also been preparing financing instruments to fund the construction of the new 
infrastructure necessary to be constructed by DWC to convey water to the WaterLink communities.  
All project costs, including legal, engineering, property acquisition, construction, and commissioning 
will be funded by the WaterLink communities through a WaterLink Connection Facilities Agreement 
(R-66-24) and companion Project Escrow agreement (R-67-24), also included on this agenda. 

The contract documents presented for approval have been crafted to provide continuity with 
previously approved Subsequent Customer Agreements to the greatest extent possible.  DWC Legal 
Counsel and staff have worked closely with the WaterLink communities, their staff, and their legal 
counsel over many months to advance these documents for consideration.  I wish to acknowledge and 
thank them for the significant effort that was provided to complete this task.   

A summary of the primary elements of the Agreements is provided following: 

 
                                             50 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Water Purchase and Sales Agreements (R-60-24, R-62-24, R-64-24): 

The Water Purchase and Sale Agreement(s) have been constructed to provide a term that matches 
that of the other Contract Customers, ending February 24, 2064; and include language, terms, and 
conditions consistent with DWC Contract Customers.  The project is scheduled for construction to 
commence in 2025 and to be commissioned in 2028.  WaterLink communities will begin to access 
the new water source at that time, or as soon as permitted based upon achieving compliance with 
the IDNR water loss regulations. 

Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreements (R-61-24, R-63-24, R-65-24): 

All new (subsequent) DWC customers are required to provide a Capital Cost Recovery Charge (aka 
“buy-in fee”) to ensure parity with the original Charter Customers which paid for the original DWC 
system upon formation.  The Capital Cost Recovery Charged is determined by computing each 
customer’s pro-rata share by utilizing their IDNR allocation to calculate their demand as a 
percentage of the whole, and multiplying that percentage by the value of all DWC fixed assets as 
of the most recently audited fiscal year (FYE 2024).  Based upon these computations, the Capital 
Cost Recovery Charges to be collected are as follows: 

 Oswego:   $11,047,790 

 Montgomery: $  9,998,815 

 Yorkville: $  8,013,886 

Companion Agreements: 

In addition to the 1) Water Purchase and Sale Contract(s) and 2) Capital Cost Recovery Charge 
Agreement(s) for each of three WaterLink Communities, there are also two additional agreements 
for which there are four parties/signatories: the Village of Oswego, the Village of Montgomery, 
the United City of Yorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission.  These items are included on the 
DWC October 17, 2024 DWC Agenda and are listed below: 

 Resolution R-66-24: WaterLink Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement 
 Resolution R-67-24: WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) and the 
Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink communities of Oswego, Montgomery, 
and Yorkville. 

 
                                             51 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-60-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT  
WITH THE VILLAGE OF OSWEGO 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (collectively the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan 

water to their residents by connecting to the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and Oswego have negotiated an Intergovernmental Agreement 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of 

Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into a WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

Municipalities for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Water Purchase and Sale Contract with Oswego. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Water Purchase and Sale Contract with the Village of Oswego attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 

 
                                             52 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

authorizes the Chairman to execute the Water Purchase and Sale Contract on behalf of the DuPage Water 

Commission and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.   

  
Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT     

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-60-24.docx 
 

 
                                             53 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                             54 of 570



 
                                             55 of 570



 
                                             56 of 570



 
                                             57 of 570



 
                                             58 of 570



 
                                             59 of 570



 
                                             60 of 570



 
                                             61 of 570



 
                                             62 of 570



 
                                             63 of 570



 
                                             64 of 570



 
                                             65 of 570



 
                                             66 of 570



 
                                             67 of 570



 
                                             68 of 570



 
                                             69 of 570



 
                                             70 of 570



 
                                             71 of 570



 
                                             72 of 570



 
                                             73 of 570



 
                                             74 of 570



 
                                             75 of 570



 
                                             76 of 570



 
                                             77 of 570



 
                                             78 of 570



 
                                             79 of 570



 
                                             80 of 570



 
                                             81 of 570



 
                                             82 of 570



 
                                             83 of 570



 
                                             84 of 570



 
                                             85 of 570



 
                                             86 of 570



 
                                             87 of 570



 
                                             88 of 570



 
                                             89 of 570



 
                                             90 of 570



 
                                             91 of 570



 
                                             92 of 570



 
                                             93 of 570



 
                                             94 of 570



 
                                             95 of 570



 
                                             96 of 570



 
                                             97 of 570



 
                                             98 of 570



 
                                             99 of 570



 
                                              100 of 570



 
                                              101 of 570



 
                                              102 of 570



 
                                              103 of 570



 
                                              104 of 570



 
                                              105 of 570



 
                                              106 of 570



 
                                              107 of 570



 
                                              108 of 570



 
                                              109 of 570



 
                                              110 of 570



 
                                              111 of 570



 
                                              112 of 570



 
                                              113 of 570



 
                                              114 of 570



 
                                              115 of 570



 
                                              116 of 570



 
                                              117 of 570



 
                                              118 of 570



 
                                              119 of 570



 
                                              120 of 570



 
                                              121 of 570



 
                                              122 of 570



 
                                              123 of 570



 
                                              124 of 570



 
                                              125 of 570



 
                                              126 of 570



 
                                              127 of 570



 
                                              128 of 570



 
                                              129 of 570



 
                                              130 of 570



 
                                              131 of 570



 
                                              132 of 570



 
                                              133 of 570



 
                                              134 of 570



 
                                              135 of 570



 
                                              136 of 570



 
                                              137 of 570



 
                                              138 of 570



 
                                              139 of 570



 
                                              140 of 570



 
                                              141 of 570



 
                                              142 of 570



 
                                              143 of 570



 
                                              144 of 570



 
                                              145 of 570



 
                                              146 of 570



 
                                              147 of 570



 
                                              148 of 570



 
                                              149 of 570



 
                                              150 of 570



 
                                              151 of 570



 
                                              152 of 570



 
                                              153 of 570



 
                                              154 of 570



 
                                              155 of 570



 
                                              156 of 570



 
                                              157 of 570



 
                                              158 of 570



 
                                              159 of 570



 
                                              160 of 570



 
                                              161 of 570



 
                                              162 of 570



 
                                              163 of 570



 
                                              164 of 570



 
                                              165 of 570



 
                                              166 of 570



 
                                              167 of 570



 
                                              168 of 570



 
                                              169 of 570



 
                                              170 of 570



 
                                              171 of 570



 
                                              172 of 570



 
                                              173 of 570



 
                                              174 of 570



 
                                              175 of 570



 
                                              176 of 570



 
                                              177 of 570



 
                                              178 of 570



 
                                              179 of 570



 
                                              180 of 570



 
                                              181 of 570



 
                                              182 of 570



 
                                              183 of 570



 
                                              184 of 570



 
                                              185 of 570



 
                                              186 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-60-24, R-61-24, R-62-
24, R-63-24, R-64-24, and R-65-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

                         

 

 
Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) 
and Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink 
communities of Oswego, Yorkville, and Montgomery 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

I am pleased to present the WaterLink Customer Agreements for DWC Board consideration.  The 
WaterLink communities have been working toward a new water source for over 10 years after 
becoming aware of impending water scarcity in the aquifer which provides their current supply.  After 
extended study, the WaterLink partners (Oswego, Montgomery, and Yorkville), identified Lake 
Michigan source water delivered by the DuPage Water Commission as the preferred future source.  
This project will be one of the largest water projects in the Midwest, and will extend the DWC service 
area into Kendall counties with DWC water transmission infrastructure extending west of the Fox River 
upon completion. 

The WaterLink communities have received IDNR allocations and have worked with DWC to fund Phase 
I and Phase II engineering over the last two years.  During this period of time, the WaterLink 
communities have also been preparing financing instruments to fund the construction of the new 
infrastructure necessary to be constructed by DWC to convey water to the WaterLink communities.  
All project costs, including legal, engineering, property acquisition, construction, and commissioning 
will be funded by the WaterLink communities through a WaterLink Connection Facilities Agreement 
(R-66-24) and companion Project Escrow agreement (R-67-24), also included on this agenda. 

The contract documents presented for approval have been crafted to provide continuity with 
previously approved Subsequent Customer Agreements to the greatest extent possible.  DWC Legal 
Counsel and staff have worked closely with the WaterLink communities, their staff, and their legal 
counsel over many months to advance these documents for consideration.  I wish to acknowledge and 
thank them for the significant effort that was provided to complete this task.   

A summary of the primary elements of the Agreements is provided following: 

 
                                              187 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Water Purchase and Sales Agreements (R-60-24, R-62-24, R-64-24): 

The Water Purchase and Sale Agreement(s) have been constructed to provide a term that matches 
that of the other Contract Customers, ending February 24, 2064; and include language, terms, and 
conditions consistent with DWC Contract Customers.  The project is scheduled for construction to 
commence in 2025 and to be commissioned in 2028.  WaterLink communities will begin to access 
the new water source at that time, or as soon as permitted based upon achieving compliance with 
the IDNR water loss regulations. 

Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreements (R-61-24, R-63-24, R-65-24): 

All new (subsequent) DWC customers are required to provide a Capital Cost Recovery Charge (aka 
“buy-in fee”) to ensure parity with the original Charter Customers which paid for the original DWC 
system upon formation.  The Capital Cost Recovery Charged is determined by computing each 
customer’s pro-rata share by utilizing their IDNR allocation to calculate their demand as a 
percentage of the whole, and multiplying that percentage by the value of all DWC fixed assets as 
of the most recently audited fiscal year (FYE 2024).  Based upon these computations, the Capital 
Cost Recovery Charges to be collected are as follows: 

 Oswego:   $11,047,790 

 Montgomery: $  9,998,815 

 Yorkville: $  8,013,886 

Companion Agreements: 

In addition to the 1) Water Purchase and Sale Contract(s) and 2) Capital Cost Recovery Charge 
Agreement(s) for each of three WaterLink Communities, there are also two additional agreements 
for which there are four parties/signatories: the Village of Oswego, the Village of Montgomery, 
the United City of Yorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission.  These items are included on the 
DWC October 17, 2024 DWC Agenda and are listed below: 

 Resolution R-66-24: WaterLink Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement 
 Resolution R-67-24: WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) and the 
Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink communities of Oswego, Montgomery, 
and Yorkville. 

 
                                              188 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-61-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH  
THE VILLAGE OF OSWEGO CONCERNING CAPITAL COST RECOVERY CHARGE 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (Oswego, Montgomery and Yorkville are collectively referred to 

herein as the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan water to their residents by connecting to 

the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and Oswego have negotiated an Intergovernmental Agreement 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of 

Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service for the Project; 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into a WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

Municipalities for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Village of Oswego 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

 
                                              189 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Village of Oswego Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge 

attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and authorizes the Chairman to execute the agreement on behalf of the 

DuPage Water Commission and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said 

agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.  

Aye Nay Absent Abstain 
Bouckaert, D. 

Cuzzone, N. 

Fennell, J. 

VACANT 

Novotny, D. 

Pruyn, J. 

Romano, K. 

Rush, K. 

Russo, D. 

Saverino, F. 

Suess, P. 

Van Vooren, D. 

Zay, J. 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 

________________________________ 

ATTEST:  

James F. Zay, Chairman 

______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 

Board/Resolutions/2024/R-61-24.docx  
                                              190 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                              191 of 570



RESOLUTION N0. 24 - R- 79

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENAL
AGREEMENT CONCERING CAPITAL COST RECOVERY CHARGE

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF OSWEGO AND THE DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

WHEREAS, the Village of Oswego ("Village") has a population of more than 25,000 and is

therefore a "Home Rule Unit" under the 1970 Illinois Constitution; and

WHEREAS, the Illinois Constitution of 1970 provides that a Home Rule Unit may exercise any

power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs, including but not limited to the

power to regulate for the protection ofthe public health, safety, morals and welfare; to license, to tax; and

to incur debt; and

WHEREAS; on December 14, 2021, the Village ofOswego Board of'I'rustees approved

Resolution 21-R-101, Designating I.ake Michigan as the Preferred Water Source and the DuPage Water

Commission as the Preferred Water Supplier for the Village of Oswego; and

WHEKEAS, on May 6, 2022, the State oflllinois enacted Public Act 102-0736, allowing for

representation ofnon-DuPage County communities on the DuPage Water Commission l^oard of

Commissioners; and

WHE1ULAS, on June 28, 2022, the citizens ofOswego approved a referendum to implement a

real estate transfer tax dedicated to funding water system improvements, including the connection to I.ake

Michigan vvater; and

WHEREAS, on May 2, 2023, the Village ofOswego Board ofTrustees approved Resolution 23-

R-30, Authorizing the Execution ofan Escrow Intergovemmental Agreement with the Village of

Montgomery, the United City ofYorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission to fund Phase I

engineering for the connection of the communities to the DuPage Water Commission Lake Michigan

water system; and

WHEREAS, on August 10, 2023, the Village ofOswego received a Lake Michigan Water

Allocation Permit from the Illinois Department ofNatural Resources to access Lake Michigan water for

the community water supply; and

WHEREAS, on November 7, 2023, the Village ofOswego Board ofTrustees approved

Ordinance 23-72, establishing new water and sewer rates to fund the connection to Lake Michigan water;

and

 
                                              192 of 570



WHEREAS, on March 18, 2024, the Village ofOswego Board ofTrustees approved Resolution

24-R-24, Authorizing the Execution ofa Second Escrow Intergovemmental Agreement with the Village

of Montgomery, the United City ofYorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission to fund Phase II

engineering for the connection ofthe communities to the DuPage Water Commission Lake Michigan

water system; and

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2024, the Village ofOswego Board ofTmstees approved Resolution

24-R-33, Authorizing the Execution ofan Agreement with Comell Engineering Group, for Optimal

Corrosion Control Treatment Study to ensure that the switch from well water to lake water is done safely;

and

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2024, the Village ofOswego Board ofTrustees approved Resolution 24-

R-44, Authorizing the Execution ofan Intergovemmental Agreement Providing for the Sharing ofCosts

and Funding for the Construction ofFacilities to Transport Lake Michigan Water to the Village of

Oswego, the United City ofYorkville, and the Village of Montgomery; and

WHEREAS, The Parties deem it to be in their best interests to approve this Intergovernmental

Agreement Conceming Capital Cost Recovery Charge.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF OSWEGO, KENDALL AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS,

as follows:

SECTION 1. ENCORPORATION OF RECITALS

That the recitals set forth above are incoq)orated here by reference.

SECTION 2. APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT

The Village President and Village Board of
'lrustees hereby approve the Intergovernmental

Agreement Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge between the Village ofOswego and the

I^uPage Water Commission, and the Village President and Village Clerk are aulhorized and directed

to execute on behalfofthe Village ofOswego the Intergovcrnmcntal Agrccmcnt Conccming Capital

Cost Recovery Charge substantially in the form attached as "Exhibit A."

SECTION3. REPEALER

All Resolutions or parts ofResolutions in conflict with any ofthe provisions ofthis Resolution

shall be, and the same hereby repealed to the extent ofthe conflict.

 
                                              193 of 570



SECTION4. SEVERABILITY

This Resolution and every provision thereofshall be considered severable. Ifany section,

paragraph, clause or provision ofthis Resolution is declared by a court oflaw to be invalid or

unconstitutional, the invalidity or unconstitutionality thereof shall not affect the validity of any other

provisions ofthis Resolution.

SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in the
manner provided by law.

PASSED by the Board ofTrustees ofthe Village ofOswego, Kendall and Will Counties, Illinois

this 1st day ofOctober 2024.

TOM GUIST

KIT KUHRT

KAREN NOVY

AYE JENNIFER JONES SINNOTT ABSENT

AYE KARIN MCCARTHY-LANGE AYE

AYE ANDREW TORRES AYE

APPROVED by me, Ryan Kauffman, as President ofthe Village ofOswego, Kendall and Will

Counties, Illinois this 1st day ofOctober 2024.

RYAN KAUFFMAN, VILLAGE PRESIDENT

TINA TOUCHETTE, VILLAGE CLERK

 
                                              194 of 570



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)

COUNTY OF KENDALL )

ss

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

(RESOLUTION)

I, Tina Touchette, the duly qualified and acting Village Clerk ofthe Village ofOswego, Kendall and

Will Counties, Illinois, do hereby certify that I am the keeper of its books and records and that the attached

hereto is a true and correct copy ofa Resolution entitled:

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENAL
AGREEMENT CONCERING CAPITAL COST RECOVERY CHARGE

BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF OSWEGO AND THE DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION

which Resolution was duly adopted by said Board ofTrustees at a meeting held on the 1st day ofOctober

2024, and thereafter approved by the Village President on the 1st day ofOctober 2024.

I do further certify, in my official capacity, that a quorum ofsaid Board ofTrustees was present at

said meeting and that the Board complied with all requirements ofthe Illinois Open Meetings Act.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 2nd day ofOctober 2024.

>l»ll>.l.l.".""""f,

^?^\

%<w7^^

^"••. ^^i-^^/^ii^ww^'y/

^'^y'"';(„....^....,1>\^'
"'"1111111111"^*

Tina Touchette, Village Clerk
Village ofOswego

 
                                              195 of 570



EXHIBIT A

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE VILLAGE OF OSWEGO
CONCERNING CAPITAL COST RECOVERY CHARGE

This Intergovemmental Agreement, (the
"Agreement") is dated the 17th day of October

2024 (the
"Effective Date"), by and between the Village of Oswego ("Village") and the DuPage

Water Commission (the
"Commission"), a county water commission and public corporation under

Division 135 ofArticle 11 ofthe Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 et seq., and the

Water Commission Act of 1985, 70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq. (the
"Acts").

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Commission has been organized under the Acts to supply water within its

territorial limits; and

WHEREAS, the Village currently owns and operates a municipal drinking water system

("Oswego Unit System") served by wells that extract source water from the Ironton-Galesville

aquifer; and

WHEREAS, the Village is within the territorial limits ofthe Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Village intends to change from the Ironton-Galesville groundwater source

to Lake Michigan source water, through a Water Purchase and Sale Contract with the DuPage

Water Commission, and has applied for and received a Lake Michigan Water Allocation Permit

("Permit") from the State oflllinois Department ofNatural Resources, Office ofWater Resources;

and

WHEREAS, the Village has conducted extensive study and has concluded that the most

sustainable altemative water source to serve the Village through the municipal waterworks system

currently serving the Village, as well as any extensions or improvements of that system, is Lake

Michigan water from the Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Commission owns and maintains a waterworks system as a supplier of

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 1 of 11

 
                                              196 of 570



Lake Michigan water to member customers that contract for such service ("Commission's

Waterworks System"); and

WHEREAS, the Village is seeking to obtain water for its residents beginning in 2028 from

the Commission in the incorporated areas within the Village (the
"Service Area"); and

WHEREAS, the Village seeks to connect to Lake Michigan through the Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has entered into a water supply contract with the City of

Chicago to purchase Lake Michigan water sufficient to meet the water supply needs of the

Commission and its customers; and

WHEREAS, the Commission's water supply contract with the City of Chicago is set to

expire in 2041 and the Commission is currently: (1) exploring an alternative solution to obtaining

Lake Michigan water; and (2) in discussions and negotiations with the City of Chicago for a new

water supply agreement; and

WHEREAS, to carry out their duties and responsibilities, and desire to create a method of

providing an adequate supply of Lake Michigan water to the Oswego Unit System, the

Commission, and the Village, concurrent with this Agreement, are entering into the Water

Purchase and Sale Contract dated October 17, 2024, WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovemmental

Agreement, and an Intergovemmental Agreement Conceming Development of Connection

Facilities to Implement Water Service; and

WHEREAS, to become a member ofthe Commission and comply with the Water Purchase

and Sale Contract, the Village must pay its proportional share ofthe costs for the property owned

by the Commission (the
"Capital Cost Recovery Charge"); and

WHEREAS, the Commission previously enacted Resolution R-79-04 allowing the

Commission the ability to finance the Capital Cost Recovery Charge for potential Subsequent

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 2 of 11

 
                                              197 of 570



Customers (customers other than its original customers) requesting such accommodation on a

case-by case basis; and

WHEREAS, the matters set forth in this Agreement will serve the public interest, and the

Commission and the Village deem it to be in each of their best interests for the Commission to

provide financing to the Village for the money necessary to pay the Capital Cost Recovery Charge

and enter into this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10 ofArticle VII ofthe Illinois Constitution of 1970, the

provisions ofthe Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., and other applicable

authority, the Commission and the Village are authorized to enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and

agreements hereinafter set forth, the Commission and the Village hereby agree as follows:

SECTION 1. PREAMBLES

The foregoing recitals are by this reference incorporated herein and made a part hereof as

iffully set forth herein.

SECTION 2. COMMISSION FINANCING

A. Capital Cost Recovery Financing. The Commission will, after the execution and

delivery ofthis Agreement, provide financing to the Village in the amount of$l 1,047,790.00 (the

"Capital Cost Recovery Amount").

B. Payment Terms.

1. The Village will pay the Commission the principal balance of the Capital

Cost Recovery Amount in 360 monthly installments, commencing at the

time the first payment is due under Subsection 7M in the Water Purchase

and Sale Contract (the
"Monthly Payment Date"), and continuing in

successive monthly installments on each Monthly Payment Date, with the

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
;e3ofll

 
                                              198 of 570



final payment of any principal, if not sooner paid, on the 360th Monthly

Payment Date. Each of the 360 monthly installments of principal for the

Capital Cost Recovery Amount will be in the amount of $30,688.31, except

that the final payment will be in the amount of $30,686.71.

2. Interest on the unpaid principal balance of the Capital Cost Recovery

Amount, will accrue at the rate ofzero percent (0%) per annum.

C. Tender of Capital Cost Recovery Amount Payments. Payments of the principal of

and interest will be made in lawful money of the United States of America in federal or other

immediately available funds.

D. Asset-in-Kind Contribution. To the extent the Village agrees to pay for a portion

ofthe increase in size ofthe primary 48" westem pipeline (commencing at Book Road and 75

Street and extending west ofthe Fox River to a termination point at Orchard Road, also known as

"TW 6/25" in the DWC naming convention), from the baseline pipe size to 54", the value ofthat

contribution by the Village will be mutually agreed upon and set forth in a separate agreement

between the Commission and the Village before the closing ofthe WIFIA Loan.

E. Covenants. The covenants set forth in Subsections 9A, 9B, 9C, and 9D ofthe Water

Purchase and Sale Contract are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

SECTION 3. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

A. Commission Defaults. The occurrence ofthe following will constitute a default by

the Commission under this Agreement: The failure by the Commission to observe and/or perfonn

any covenant, condition, and/or agreement on its part to be observed and/or performed under this

Agreement, and the continuation ofsaid failure for thirty (30) days after the Commission's receipt

of written notice thereof from the Village. However, if said failure cannot be remedied by the

Commission within said thirty (30) day period and the Commission has diligently pursued the

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 4 of 11

 
                                              199 of 570



resolution ofthe failure during said thirty (30) days, the period will be extended by such additional

time as may be reasonably required by the Commission to cure or correct said failure. In no event

will the period be extended by more than ninety (90) days. In the event of a default by the

Commission under this Agreement, the Village will have the same remedies as are provided for,

and only the remedies provided for, in the Water Purchase and Sale Contractt for a default by the

Commission.

B. Village Defaults. The occurrence ofthe following will constitute a default by the

Village under this Agreement:

1. The failure by the Village to observe and/or perform any covenant,

condition, and/or agreement on its part to be observed and/or performed

under this Agreement, and the continuation of said failure for thirty (30)

days after the Village's receipt of written notice thereof from the

Commission. However, if said failure cannot be remedied by the Village

within said thirty (30) day period and the Village has diligently pursued the

resolution of the failure during said thirty (30) days, the period will be

extended by such additional time as may be reasonably required by the

Village to cure or correct said failure. In no event will the period be

extended by more than ninety (90) days. In the event of a default by the

Village under this Agreement, the Commission will have the same remedies

as are provided for, and only the remedies provided for, in the Water

Purchase and Sale Contract for a default by the Village;

2. A default under the October 17, 2024 Intergovemmental Agreement

Conceming Development of Connection Facilities to Implement Water

Service ; or

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 5 of 11

 
                                              200 of 570



3. A default under the October 17, 2024 WaterLink Project Escrow

Intergovemmental Agreement.

In the event of a default by the Village, the Commission will: (i) be paid its reasonable

attomeys' fees and costs incurred in connection with that default, in addition to any attorneys' fees

and costs incurred in enforcing the terms of this Agreement; (2) be entitled to the right to enforce

a lien against all income derived from the Oswego Unit System, other than that income necessary

to pay any loans to the State of Illinois or its agencies for the construction of the Oswego Unit

System, until the Village's Capital Cost Recovery Amount and any amounts due from the Village

under the WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement are paid back in full; and (3)

will have the same remedies as are provided for in the Water Purchase and Sale Contract for a

default by the Village.

C. Force Majeure. In case by reason of a force majeure event, either party to this

Agreement will be rendered unable wholly or in part to carry out its obligation under this

Agreement, then ifsuch party will give notice and full particulars ofsuch force majeure event in

writing to the other party within a reasonable time after occurrence ofthe event or cause relied on,

the obligation ofthe party giving such notice, so far as it is affected by such force majeure event,

will be suspended during the continuance of the inability then claimed, but for no longer period,

and any such party will endeavor to remove or overcome such inability with all reasonable

dispatch. The term "force majeure event" as employed in this Agreement will mean acts ofGod,

strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, acts ofpublic enemy, orders ofany kind ofthe

Govemment of the United States, of the State of Illinois, or of any civil or military authority,

insurrections, riots, epidemics, pandemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, hurricanes,

storms, floods, washouts, droughts, arrests, restraints ofgovemment and people, civil disturbances,

explosions, breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines, canals, or tunnels, partial or entire

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 6 of 11

 
                                              201 of 570



failure of water supply, and inability on the part of the Commission or of the Village to deliver

Lake Michigan water, or of the Village to receive Lake Michigan water, on account of any other

causes not reasonably within the control ofthe party claiming such inability. The settlement of

strikes and lockouts will be entirely within the discretion ofthe party having the difficulty, and the

above requirement that any "force majeure event" will be remedied with all reasonable dispatch

will not require the settlement ofstrikes and lockouts by acceding to the demands ofthe opposing

party or parties when such settlement is unfavorable to it in thejudgment ofthe party having the

difficulty.

SECTION 4. LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS AND REQUIREMENTS

A. Supplemental Agreement. This Agreement will be deemed to supplement the

Water Purchase and Sale Contract in connection with the supply of Lake Michigan water to the

Oswego Unit System. If there is any other conflict or inconsistency between the tenns of this

Agreement and the terms of the Water Purchase and Sale Contract, then the terms of this

Agreement will control. The Village will at all times comply with all terms and conditions ofthe

Water Purchase and Sale Contract, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

B. Term ofAgreement. This Agreement will continue in full force and effect from the

Effective Date until the Capital Cost Recovery Amount is paid in full by the Village.

C. Cooperation and Further Agreements. The Commission and the Village agree to

cooperate in good faith throughout the term ofthis Agreement to implement the letter and spirit of

the provisions set forth in this Agreement.

D. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by any party, in whole or in

part, without the prior written consent ofthe other party.

E. Notices. Any notices under this Agreement will be personally delivered, delivered

by the deposit thereof in the U. S. Postal Service, postage prepaid, registered, or certified, return

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 7 of 11

 
                                              202 of 570



receipt requested, or by overnight courier service to the Party at the address listed below or at

another address hereafter designated by notice, or by email transmission. Any such notice will be

deemed to have been delivered and given upon personal delivery or delivery by a nationally

recognized ovemight courier service, or deposit with the United States Postal Service or upon

receipt of written confirmation that facsimile or email transmission has been successfully

completed:

Ifto the Commission:

Paul D. May, P.E., General Manager
DuPage Water Commission
600 E. Butterfield Road
Elmhurst,IL60126
Email: mav(%dpwc.org

With a copy to:

Phillip A. Luetkehans
Luetkehans, Brady, Gamer & Armstrong
2700 International Drive, Suite 305
WestChicago,IL60185
Email: pal(%lbgalaw.com

IftotheVillage:

Village Administrator
Village ofOswego
lOOParkersMill
Oswego, IL 60543
Email: info@,oswegoil.org

With a copy to:

David J. Silverman
Village Attomey
Mahoney, Silverman, & Cross, LLC
126 SouthMain Street
Oswego, Illinois 60543

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 8 of 11

 
                                              203 of 570



With acopy to:

Irene Schild Caminer
Caminer Law, LLC
2612 W. Sunnyside Ave.
Chicago, IL 60625
Email: Irene(%caminerlaw.com

By notice complying with the requirements of this Section 4.E, the Commission and the

Village each will have the right to change the address or addressee or both for all future notices to

it, but no notice ofa change ofaddress will be effective until actually received.

F. No Oral Agreements. No oral agreements exist by or between the Commission and

the Village with respect to this Agreement, nor was the making and execution of this Agreement

induced by any representation, statement, warranty, agreement, or action other than those

expressed or explicitly referenced in this Agreement.

G. No Waiver. No course of dealing or failure of the Commission or the Village to

enforce strictly any term, right, or condition of this Agreement will be construed as a waiver of

such term, right, or condition. No express waiver ofany tenn, right, or condition ofthis Agreement

will operate as a waiver ofany other term, right, or condition.

H. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit

ofthe contracting parties, and nothing in this Agreement is intended, either expressly or impliedly,

to provide any right or benefit of any kind whatsoever to any person or entity who is not a party to

this Agreement, or to acknowledge, establish, or impose any legal duty to any third party.

I. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement will be governed by and construed

exclusively under the applicable laws, but not the conflict of laws rules, of the State of Illinois.

Venue for any litigation arising out ofthis Agreement will only be proper in the Eighteenth Judicial

Circuit Court, DuPage County, Illinois.

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page9ofll

 
                                              204 of 570



J. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of

which will be deemed to be an original, and all of which will constitute but one and the same

instrument. Any such counteq3art may be signed by one or more of the parties hereto so long as

each ofthe parties hereto has signed one or more ofsuch counterparts.

K. Authority. The person(s) executing this Agreement on behalfofthe Parties hereto

warrant that: (i) such the Village and the Commission are duly organized and existing; (ii) the

individual signing is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of said

Village or the Commission; (iii) by so executing this Agreement, such Village and the

Commission are formally bound to the provisions and conditions contained in this Agreement; and

(iv) the entering into this Agreement by the Village and the Commission does not violate any

provision ofany other agreement to which said Village and the Commission is bound.

L. Mutual Cooperation. The Village and the Commission acknowledge that it may be

necessary to execute documents other than those specifically referred to herein in order to complete

the objectives and requirements that are set forth in this Agreement. The Village and the

Commission hereby agree to cooperate with each other by executing such other documents or

taking such other actions as may be reasonably necessary to complete the objectives and

requirements set forth herein in accordance with the intent ofthe Village and the Commission as

evidenced by this Agreement.

M. Amendment. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the Village and the

Commission regarding its subject matter and may not be changed or amended except pursuant to

a written instrument signed by the Village and the Commission.

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 10 of 11

 
                                              205 of 570



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Village and the Commission hereto have caused their

respective corporate names to be subscribed hereto and their respective corporate seals to be

affixed hereto and attested by their duly authorized officers.

ATTEST:

By:

Its:

DuPAGE WATER COMMISSION

By:

Its:

ATTEST: O

B

its: ^///»A& ^^. ItS: /^-^l^ ^4-^-^yl^

Oswego -IGA Capital Cost Recovery Charge
Page 11 of 11

 
                                              206 of 570



 
                                              207 of 570



 
                                              208 of 570



 
                                              209 of 570



 
                                              210 of 570



 
                                              211 of 570



 
                                              212 of 570



 
                                              213 of 570



 
                                              214 of 570



 
                                              215 of 570



 
                                              216 of 570



 
                                              217 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-60-24, R-61-24, R-62-
24, R-63-24, R-64-24, and R-65-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

                         

 

 
Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) 
and Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink 
communities of Oswego, Yorkville, and Montgomery 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

I am pleased to present the WaterLink Customer Agreements for DWC Board consideration.  The 
WaterLink communities have been working toward a new water source for over 10 years after 
becoming aware of impending water scarcity in the aquifer which provides their current supply.  After 
extended study, the WaterLink partners (Oswego, Montgomery, and Yorkville), identified Lake 
Michigan source water delivered by the DuPage Water Commission as the preferred future source.  
This project will be one of the largest water projects in the Midwest, and will extend the DWC service 
area into Kendall counties with DWC water transmission infrastructure extending west of the Fox River 
upon completion. 

The WaterLink communities have received IDNR allocations and have worked with DWC to fund Phase 
I and Phase II engineering over the last two years.  During this period of time, the WaterLink 
communities have also been preparing financing instruments to fund the construction of the new 
infrastructure necessary to be constructed by DWC to convey water to the WaterLink communities.  
All project costs, including legal, engineering, property acquisition, construction, and commissioning 
will be funded by the WaterLink communities through a WaterLink Connection Facilities Agreement 
(R-66-24) and companion Project Escrow agreement (R-67-24), also included on this agenda. 

The contract documents presented for approval have been crafted to provide continuity with 
previously approved Subsequent Customer Agreements to the greatest extent possible.  DWC Legal 
Counsel and staff have worked closely with the WaterLink communities, their staff, and their legal 
counsel over many months to advance these documents for consideration.  I wish to acknowledge and 
thank them for the significant effort that was provided to complete this task.   

A summary of the primary elements of the Agreements is provided following: 

 
                                              218 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Water Purchase and Sales Agreements (R-60-24, R-62-24, R-64-24): 

The Water Purchase and Sale Agreement(s) have been constructed to provide a term that matches 
that of the other Contract Customers, ending February 24, 2064; and include language, terms, and 
conditions consistent with DWC Contract Customers.  The project is scheduled for construction to 
commence in 2025 and to be commissioned in 2028.  WaterLink communities will begin to access 
the new water source at that time, or as soon as permitted based upon achieving compliance with 
the IDNR water loss regulations. 

Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreements (R-61-24, R-63-24, R-65-24): 

All new (subsequent) DWC customers are required to provide a Capital Cost Recovery Charge (aka 
“buy-in fee”) to ensure parity with the original Charter Customers which paid for the original DWC 
system upon formation.  The Capital Cost Recovery Charged is determined by computing each 
customer’s pro-rata share by utilizing their IDNR allocation to calculate their demand as a 
percentage of the whole, and multiplying that percentage by the value of all DWC fixed assets as 
of the most recently audited fiscal year (FYE 2024).  Based upon these computations, the Capital 
Cost Recovery Charges to be collected are as follows: 

 Oswego:   $11,047,790 

 Montgomery: $  9,998,815 

 Yorkville: $  8,013,886 

Companion Agreements: 

In addition to the 1) Water Purchase and Sale Contract(s) and 2) Capital Cost Recovery Charge 
Agreement(s) for each of three WaterLink Communities, there are also two additional agreements 
for which there are four parties/signatories: the Village of Oswego, the Village of Montgomery, 
the United City of Yorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission.  These items are included on the 
DWC October 17, 2024 DWC Agenda and are listed below: 

 Resolution R-66-24: WaterLink Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement 
 Resolution R-67-24: WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) and the 
Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink communities of Oswego, Montgomery, 
and Yorkville. 

 
                                              219 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-62-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT WITH THE UNITED CITY OF 
YORKVILLE  

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (collectively the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan 

water to their residents by connecting to the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and Yorkville have negotiated an Intergovernmental Agreement 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of 

Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into a WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

Municipalities for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Water Purchase and Sale Contract with Yorkville. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Water Purchase and Sale Contract with the United City of Yorkville attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 

 
                                              220 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

authorizes the Chairman to execute the Water Purchase and Sale Contract on behalf of the DuPage Water 

Commission and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.   

  
Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT        

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 
ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 

 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-62-24.docx 

 
                                              221 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                              222 of 570



 
                                              223 of 570



 
                                              224 of 570



 
                                              225 of 570



 
                                              226 of 570



 
                                              227 of 570



 
                                              228 of 570



 
                                              229 of 570



 
                                              230 of 570



 
                                              231 of 570



 
                                              232 of 570



 
                                              233 of 570



 
                                              234 of 570



 
                                              235 of 570



 
                                              236 of 570



 
                                              237 of 570



 
                                              238 of 570



 
                                              239 of 570



 
                                              240 of 570



 
                                              241 of 570



 
                                              242 of 570



 
                                              243 of 570



 
                                              244 of 570



 
                                              245 of 570



 
                                              246 of 570



 
                                              247 of 570



 
                                              248 of 570



 
                                              249 of 570



 
                                              250 of 570



 
                                              251 of 570



 
                                              252 of 570



 
                                              253 of 570



 
                                              254 of 570



 
                                              255 of 570



 
                                              256 of 570



 
                                              257 of 570



 
                                              258 of 570



 
                                              259 of 570



 
                                              260 of 570



 
                                              261 of 570



 
                                              262 of 570



 
                                              263 of 570



 
                                              264 of 570



 
                                              265 of 570



 
                                              266 of 570



 
                                              267 of 570



 
                                              268 of 570



 
                                              269 of 570



 
                                              270 of 570



 
                                              271 of 570



 
                                              272 of 570



 
                                              273 of 570



 
                                              274 of 570



 
                                              275 of 570



 
                                              276 of 570



 
                                              277 of 570



 
                                              278 of 570



 
                                              279 of 570



 
                                              280 of 570



 
                                              281 of 570



 
                                              282 of 570



 
                                              283 of 570



 
                                              284 of 570



 
                                              285 of 570



 
                                              286 of 570



 
                                              287 of 570



 
                                              288 of 570



 
                                              289 of 570



 
                                              290 of 570



 
                                              291 of 570



 
                                              292 of 570



 
                                              293 of 570



 
                                              294 of 570



 
                                              295 of 570



 
                                              296 of 570



 
                                              297 of 570



 
                                              298 of 570



 
                                              299 of 570



 
                                              300 of 570



 
                                              301 of 570



 
                                              302 of 570



 
                                              303 of 570



 
                                              304 of 570



 
                                              305 of 570



 
                                              306 of 570



 
                                              307 of 570



 
                                              308 of 570



 
                                              309 of 570



 
                                              310 of 570



 
                                              311 of 570



 
                                              312 of 570



 
                                              313 of 570



 
                                              314 of 570



 
                                              315 of 570



 
                                              316 of 570



 
                                              317 of 570



 
                                              318 of 570



 
                                              319 of 570



 
                                              320 of 570



 
                                              321 of 570



 
                                              322 of 570



 
                                              323 of 570



 
                                              324 of 570



 
                                              325 of 570



 
                                              326 of 570



 
                                              327 of 570



 
                                              328 of 570



 
                                              329 of 570



 
                                              330 of 570



 
                                              331 of 570



 
                                              332 of 570



 
                                              333 of 570



 
                                              334 of 570



 
                                              335 of 570



 
                                              336 of 570



 
                                              337 of 570



 
                                              338 of 570



 
                                              339 of 570



 
                                              340 of 570



 
                                              341 of 570



 
                                              342 of 570



 
                                              343 of 570



 
                                              344 of 570



 
                                              345 of 570



 
                                              346 of 570



 
                                              347 of 570



 
                                              348 of 570



 
                                              349 of 570



 
                                              350 of 570



 
                                              351 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-60-24, R-61-24, R-62-
24, R-63-24, R-64-24, and R-65-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

                         

 

 
Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) 
and Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink 
communities of Oswego, Yorkville, and Montgomery 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

I am pleased to present the WaterLink Customer Agreements for DWC Board consideration.  The 
WaterLink communities have been working toward a new water source for over 10 years after 
becoming aware of impending water scarcity in the aquifer which provides their current supply.  After 
extended study, the WaterLink partners (Oswego, Montgomery, and Yorkville), identified Lake 
Michigan source water delivered by the DuPage Water Commission as the preferred future source.  
This project will be one of the largest water projects in the Midwest, and will extend the DWC service 
area into Kendall counties with DWC water transmission infrastructure extending west of the Fox River 
upon completion. 

The WaterLink communities have received IDNR allocations and have worked with DWC to fund Phase 
I and Phase II engineering over the last two years.  During this period of time, the WaterLink 
communities have also been preparing financing instruments to fund the construction of the new 
infrastructure necessary to be constructed by DWC to convey water to the WaterLink communities.  
All project costs, including legal, engineering, property acquisition, construction, and commissioning 
will be funded by the WaterLink communities through a WaterLink Connection Facilities Agreement 
(R-66-24) and companion Project Escrow agreement (R-67-24), also included on this agenda. 

The contract documents presented for approval have been crafted to provide continuity with 
previously approved Subsequent Customer Agreements to the greatest extent possible.  DWC Legal 
Counsel and staff have worked closely with the WaterLink communities, their staff, and their legal 
counsel over many months to advance these documents for consideration.  I wish to acknowledge and 
thank them for the significant effort that was provided to complete this task.   

A summary of the primary elements of the Agreements is provided following: 

 
                                              352 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Water Purchase and Sales Agreements (R-60-24, R-62-24, R-64-24): 

The Water Purchase and Sale Agreement(s) have been constructed to provide a term that matches 
that of the other Contract Customers, ending February 24, 2064; and include language, terms, and 
conditions consistent with DWC Contract Customers.  The project is scheduled for construction to 
commence in 2025 and to be commissioned in 2028.  WaterLink communities will begin to access 
the new water source at that time, or as soon as permitted based upon achieving compliance with 
the IDNR water loss regulations. 

Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreements (R-61-24, R-63-24, R-65-24): 

All new (subsequent) DWC customers are required to provide a Capital Cost Recovery Charge (aka 
“buy-in fee”) to ensure parity with the original Charter Customers which paid for the original DWC 
system upon formation.  The Capital Cost Recovery Charged is determined by computing each 
customer’s pro-rata share by utilizing their IDNR allocation to calculate their demand as a 
percentage of the whole, and multiplying that percentage by the value of all DWC fixed assets as 
of the most recently audited fiscal year (FYE 2024).  Based upon these computations, the Capital 
Cost Recovery Charges to be collected are as follows: 

 Oswego:   $11,047,790 

 Montgomery: $  9,998,815 

 Yorkville: $  8,013,886 

Companion Agreements: 

In addition to the 1) Water Purchase and Sale Contract(s) and 2) Capital Cost Recovery Charge 
Agreement(s) for each of three WaterLink Communities, there are also two additional agreements 
for which there are four parties/signatories: the Village of Oswego, the Village of Montgomery, 
the United City of Yorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission.  These items are included on the 
DWC October 17, 2024 DWC Agenda and are listed below: 

 Resolution R-66-24: WaterLink Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement 
 Resolution R-67-24: WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) and the 
Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink communities of Oswego, Montgomery, 
and Yorkville. 

 
                                              353 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-63-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE UNITED CITY OF 
YORKVILLE CONCERNING CAPITAL COST RECOVERY CHARGE 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (Oswego, Montgomery and Yorkville are collectively referred to 

herein as the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan water to their residents by connecting to 

the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and Yorkville have negotiated an Intergovernmental Agreement 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of 

Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service for the Project; 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into a WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

Municipalities for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Intergovernmental Agreement with the United City of Yorkville 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

 
                                              354 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Intergovernmental Agreement with the United City of Yorkville Concerning Capital Cost Recovery 

Charge attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and authorizes the Chairman to execute the agreement on behalf of 

the DuPage Water Commission and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said 

agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.   

 
Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
ATTEST:       James F. Zay, Chairman 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-63-24.docx 

 
                                              355 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                              356 of 570



 
                                              357 of 570



 
                                              358 of 570



 
                                              359 of 570



 
                                              360 of 570



 
                                              361 of 570



 
                                              362 of 570



 
                                              363 of 570



 
                                              364 of 570



 
                                              365 of 570



 
                                              366 of 570



 
                                              367 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-60-24, R-61-24, R-62-
24, R-63-24, R-64-24, and R-65-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

                         

 

 
Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) 
and Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink 
communities of Oswego, Yorkville, and Montgomery 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

I am pleased to present the WaterLink Customer Agreements for DWC Board consideration.  The 
WaterLink communities have been working toward a new water source for over 10 years after 
becoming aware of impending water scarcity in the aquifer which provides their current supply.  After 
extended study, the WaterLink partners (Oswego, Montgomery, and Yorkville), identified Lake 
Michigan source water delivered by the DuPage Water Commission as the preferred future source.  
This project will be one of the largest water projects in the Midwest, and will extend the DWC service 
area into Kendall counties with DWC water transmission infrastructure extending west of the Fox River 
upon completion. 

The WaterLink communities have received IDNR allocations and have worked with DWC to fund Phase 
I and Phase II engineering over the last two years.  During this period of time, the WaterLink 
communities have also been preparing financing instruments to fund the construction of the new 
infrastructure necessary to be constructed by DWC to convey water to the WaterLink communities.  
All project costs, including legal, engineering, property acquisition, construction, and commissioning 
will be funded by the WaterLink communities through a WaterLink Connection Facilities Agreement 
(R-66-24) and companion Project Escrow agreement (R-67-24), also included on this agenda. 

The contract documents presented for approval have been crafted to provide continuity with 
previously approved Subsequent Customer Agreements to the greatest extent possible.  DWC Legal 
Counsel and staff have worked closely with the WaterLink communities, their staff, and their legal 
counsel over many months to advance these documents for consideration.  I wish to acknowledge and 
thank them for the significant effort that was provided to complete this task.   

A summary of the primary elements of the Agreements is provided following: 

 
                                              368 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Water Purchase and Sales Agreements (R-60-24, R-62-24, R-64-24): 

The Water Purchase and Sale Agreement(s) have been constructed to provide a term that matches 
that of the other Contract Customers, ending February 24, 2064; and include language, terms, and 
conditions consistent with DWC Contract Customers.  The project is scheduled for construction to 
commence in 2025 and to be commissioned in 2028.  WaterLink communities will begin to access 
the new water source at that time, or as soon as permitted based upon achieving compliance with 
the IDNR water loss regulations. 

Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreements (R-61-24, R-63-24, R-65-24): 

All new (subsequent) DWC customers are required to provide a Capital Cost Recovery Charge (aka 
“buy-in fee”) to ensure parity with the original Charter Customers which paid for the original DWC 
system upon formation.  The Capital Cost Recovery Charged is determined by computing each 
customer’s pro-rata share by utilizing their IDNR allocation to calculate their demand as a 
percentage of the whole, and multiplying that percentage by the value of all DWC fixed assets as 
of the most recently audited fiscal year (FYE 2024).  Based upon these computations, the Capital 
Cost Recovery Charges to be collected are as follows: 

 Oswego:   $11,047,790 

 Montgomery: $  9,998,815 

 Yorkville: $  8,013,886 

Companion Agreements: 

In addition to the 1) Water Purchase and Sale Contract(s) and 2) Capital Cost Recovery Charge 
Agreement(s) for each of three WaterLink Communities, there are also two additional agreements 
for which there are four parties/signatories: the Village of Oswego, the Village of Montgomery, 
the United City of Yorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission.  These items are included on the 
DWC October 17, 2024 DWC Agenda and are listed below: 

 Resolution R-66-24: WaterLink Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement 
 Resolution R-67-24: WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) and the 
Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink communities of Oswego, Montgomery, 
and Yorkville. 

 
                                              369 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-64-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A WATER PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT  
WITH THE VILLAGE OF MONTGOMERY 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (collectively the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan 

water to their residents by connecting to the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and Montgomery have negotiated an Intergovernmental Agreement 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of 

Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into a WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

Municipalities for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Water Purchase and Sale Contract with Montgomery. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Water Purchase and Sale Contract with the Village of Montgomery attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and 

 
                                              370 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

authorizes the Chairman to execute the Water Purchase and Sale Contract on behalf of the DuPage Water 

Commission and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.   

  
Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT     

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-64-24.docx 
 

 
                                              371 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                              372 of 570



 
                                              373 of 570



 
                                              374 of 570



 
                                              375 of 570



 
                                              376 of 570



 
                                              377 of 570



 
                                              378 of 570



 
                                              379 of 570



 
                                              380 of 570



 
                                              381 of 570



 
                                              382 of 570



 
                                              383 of 570



 
                                              384 of 570



 
                                              385 of 570



 
                                              386 of 570



 
                                              387 of 570



 
                                              388 of 570



 
                                              389 of 570



 
                                              390 of 570



 
                                              391 of 570



 
                                              392 of 570



 
                                              393 of 570



 
                                              394 of 570



 
                                              395 of 570



 
                                              396 of 570



 
                                              397 of 570



 
                                              398 of 570



 
                                              399 of 570



 
                                              400 of 570



 
                                              401 of 570



 
                                              402 of 570



 
                                              403 of 570



 
                                              404 of 570



 
                                              405 of 570



 
                                              406 of 570



 
                                              407 of 570



 
                                              408 of 570



 
                                              409 of 570



 
                                              410 of 570



 
                                              411 of 570



 
                                              412 of 570



 
                                              413 of 570



 
                                              414 of 570



 
                                              415 of 570



 
                                              416 of 570



 
                                              417 of 570



 
                                              418 of 570



 
                                              419 of 570



 
                                              420 of 570



 
                                              421 of 570



 
                                              422 of 570



 
                                              423 of 570



 
                                              424 of 570



 
                                              425 of 570



 
                                              426 of 570



 
                                              427 of 570



 
                                              428 of 570



 
                                              429 of 570



 
                                              430 of 570



 
                                              431 of 570



 
                                              432 of 570



 
                                              433 of 570



 
                                              434 of 570



 
                                              435 of 570



 
                                              436 of 570



 
                                              437 of 570



 
                                              438 of 570



 
                                              439 of 570



 
                                              440 of 570



 
                                              441 of 570



 
                                              442 of 570



 
                                              443 of 570



 
                                              444 of 570



 
                                              445 of 570



 
                                              446 of 570



 
                                              447 of 570



 
                                              448 of 570



 
                                              449 of 570



 
                                              450 of 570



 
                                              451 of 570



 
                                              452 of 570



 
                                              453 of 570



 
                                              454 of 570



 
                                              455 of 570



 
                                              456 of 570



 
                                              457 of 570



 
                                              458 of 570



 
                                              459 of 570



 
                                              460 of 570



 
                                              461 of 570



 
                                              462 of 570



 
                                              463 of 570



 
                                              464 of 570



 
                                              465 of 570



 
                                              466 of 570



 
                                              467 of 570



 
                                              468 of 570



 
                                              469 of 570



 
                                              470 of 570



 
                                              471 of 570



 
                                              472 of 570



 
                                              473 of 570



 
                                              474 of 570



 
                                              475 of 570



 
                                              476 of 570



 
                                              477 of 570



 
                                              478 of 570



 
                                              479 of 570



 
                                              480 of 570



 
                                              481 of 570



 
                                              482 of 570



 
                                              483 of 570



 
                                              484 of 570



 
                                              485 of 570



 
                                              486 of 570



 
                                              487 of 570



 
                                              488 of 570



 
                                              489 of 570



 
                                              490 of 570



 
                                              491 of 570



 
                                              492 of 570



 
                                              493 of 570



 
                                              494 of 570



 
                                              495 of 570



 
                                              496 of 570



 
                                              497 of 570



 
                                              498 of 570



 
                                              499 of 570



 
                                              500 of 570



 
                                              501 of 570



 
                                              502 of 570



 
                                              503 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 2 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-60-24, R-61-24, R-62-
24, R-63-24, R-64-24, and R-65-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

                         

 

 
Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) 
and Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink 
communities of Oswego, Yorkville, and Montgomery 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

I am pleased to present the WaterLink Customer Agreements for DWC Board consideration.  The 
WaterLink communities have been working toward a new water source for over 10 years after 
becoming aware of impending water scarcity in the aquifer which provides their current supply.  After 
extended study, the WaterLink partners (Oswego, Montgomery, and Yorkville), identified Lake 
Michigan source water delivered by the DuPage Water Commission as the preferred future source.  
This project will be one of the largest water projects in the Midwest, and will extend the DWC service 
area into Kendall counties with DWC water transmission infrastructure extending west of the Fox River 
upon completion. 

The WaterLink communities have received IDNR allocations and have worked with DWC to fund Phase 
I and Phase II engineering over the last two years.  During this period of time, the WaterLink 
communities have also been preparing financing instruments to fund the construction of the new 
infrastructure necessary to be constructed by DWC to convey water to the WaterLink communities.  
All project costs, including legal, engineering, property acquisition, construction, and commissioning 
will be funded by the WaterLink communities through a WaterLink Connection Facilities Agreement 
(R-66-24) and companion Project Escrow agreement (R-67-24), also included on this agenda. 

The contract documents presented for approval have been crafted to provide continuity with 
previously approved Subsequent Customer Agreements to the greatest extent possible.  DWC Legal 
Counsel and staff have worked closely with the WaterLink communities, their staff, and their legal 
counsel over many months to advance these documents for consideration.  I wish to acknowledge and 
thank them for the significant effort that was provided to complete this task.   

A summary of the primary elements of the Agreements is provided following: 

 
                                              504 of 570



| 2 of 2 | 

 

Water Purchase and Sales Agreements (R-60-24, R-62-24, R-64-24): 

The Water Purchase and Sale Agreement(s) have been constructed to provide a term that matches 
that of the other Contract Customers, ending February 24, 2064; and include language, terms, and 
conditions consistent with DWC Contract Customers.  The project is scheduled for construction to 
commence in 2025 and to be commissioned in 2028.  WaterLink communities will begin to access 
the new water source at that time, or as soon as permitted based upon achieving compliance with 
the IDNR water loss regulations. 

Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreements (R-61-24, R-63-24, R-65-24): 

All new (subsequent) DWC customers are required to provide a Capital Cost Recovery Charge (aka 
“buy-in fee”) to ensure parity with the original Charter Customers which paid for the original DWC 
system upon formation.  The Capital Cost Recovery Charged is determined by computing each 
customer’s pro-rata share by utilizing their IDNR allocation to calculate their demand as a 
percentage of the whole, and multiplying that percentage by the value of all DWC fixed assets as 
of the most recently audited fiscal year (FYE 2024).  Based upon these computations, the Capital 
Cost Recovery Charges to be collected are as follows: 

 Oswego:   $11,047,790 

 Montgomery: $  9,998,815 

 Yorkville: $  8,013,886 

Companion Agreements: 

In addition to the 1) Water Purchase and Sale Contract(s) and 2) Capital Cost Recovery Charge 
Agreement(s) for each of three WaterLink Communities, there are also two additional agreements 
for which there are four parties/signatories: the Village of Oswego, the Village of Montgomery, 
the United City of Yorkville, and the DuPage Water Commission.  These items are included on the 
DWC October 17, 2024 DWC Agenda and are listed below: 

 Resolution R-66-24: WaterLink Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement 
 Resolution R-67-24: WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the Water Purchase and Sales Agreement(s) and the 
Capital Cost Recovery Charge Agreement(s) for the WaterLink communities of Oswego, Montgomery, 
and Yorkville. 

 
                                              505 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-65-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH  
THE VILLAGE OF MONTGOMERY CONCERNING CAPITAL COST RECOVERY CHARGE 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (Oswego, Montgomery and Yorkville are collectively referred to 

herein as the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan water to their residents by connecting to 

the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and Montgomery have negotiated an Intergovernmental Agreement 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of 

Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service for the Project; 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the enactment of this Resolution, the Commission and the 

Municipalities are entering into a WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

Municipalities for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Village of Montgomery 

Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

 
                                              506 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Village of Mongomery Concerning Capital Cost Recovery 

Charge attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and authorizes the Chairman to execute the agreement on behalf of 

the DuPage Water Commission and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said 

agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.   

 
Aye Nay Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 
ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
ATTEST:       James F. Zay, Chairman 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-65-24.docx 

 
                                              507 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                              508 of 570



 
                                              509 of 570



 
                                              510 of 570



 
                                              511 of 570



 
                                              512 of 570



 
                                              513 of 570



 
                                              514 of 570



 
                                              515 of 570



 
                                              516 of 570



 
                                              517 of 570



 
                                              518 of 570



 
                                              519 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-66-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           PDM      -    -   PDM 

 

 

Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve the WaterLink Connection Facilities IGA 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

Construction of significant infrastructure will be necessary to provide Lake Michigan drinking water to 
the WaterLink communities of Montgomery, Oswego, and Yorkville.  Activities associated with Phase 
I Engineering and Phase II Engineering have been funded by the WaterLink communities through 
deposits into escrow accounts for that purpose. 

Presented for DWC Board consideration today are the Water Purchase and Sale agreements (3), and 
the Capital Cost Recovery Charge agreements (3) for the WaterLink communities of Montgomery, 
Oswego, and Yorkville.  Upon approval of these six agreements, the WaterLink communities will 
become customers of the DuPage Water Commission, and DWC will be charged with constructing the 
pipeline extensions (“WaterLink Connection Facilities”) to convey Lake Michigan water to the 
WaterLink service area.  Phase II Engineering is advancing well, and DWC is preparing for construction 
to commence in 2025, with completion and commissioning of the new infrastructure in 2028. 

The attached “Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement” is the instrument which 
documents the obligation of the WaterLink communities to provide full funding for all activities 
associated with the extension of the DWC system to serve the WaterLink service area, including, legal, 
engineering, property acquisition, construction, and commissioning activities.  The IGA also 
incorporates by reference the external Cost Share Agreement between the communities which 
establishes the percentage share of cost to be committed by each community to ensure full funding 
and continuity among funding sources/agreements.   This document is accompanied by the companion 
WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement, which establishes the mechanism for fund deposits (R-67-24). 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the WaterLink Connection Facilities 
Intergovernmental Agreement 

 
                                              520 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-66-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT OF 
CONNECTION FACILITIES TO IMPLEMENT WATER SERVICE 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (collectively the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan 

water to their residents by connecting to the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and the Municipalities have negotiated an Intergovernmental 

Agreement Concerning Development of Connection Facilities to Implement Water Service (the 

“Development Agreement”) for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the approval of the Development Agreement, the Commission is 

entering into a WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement with the Municipalities for the 

Project; and 

WHEREAS, each Municipality and the Commission are also concurrently entering into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale 

Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Development Agreement with the Municipalities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

 

 

 
                                              521 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of Connection Facilities to Implement Water 

Service attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and authorizes the Chairman to execute the agreement on behalf of 

the DuPage Water Commission and to take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said 

agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.   

 
Aye Nay 

 
Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 
ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 
 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-66-24.docx 

 
                                              522 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                              523 of 570



 
                                              524 of 570



 
                                              525 of 570



 
                                              526 of 570



 
                                              527 of 570



 
                                              528 of 570



 
                                              529 of 570



 
                                              530 of 570



 
                                              531 of 570



 
                                              532 of 570



 
                                              533 of 570



 
                                              534 of 570



 
                                              535 of 570



 
                                              536 of 570



 
                                              537 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-67-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           PDM      -    -   PDM 

 

 

Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve the WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

Presented for DWC Board consideration today are the Water Purchase and Sale agreements (3), and 
the Capital Cost Recovery Charge agreements (3) for the WaterLink communities of Montgomery, 
Oswego, and Yorkville.  Upon approval of these six agreements, the WaterLink communities will 
become customers of the DuPage Water Commission, and DWC will be charged with constructing the 
pipeline extensions (“WaterLink Connection Facilities”) to convey Lake Michigan water to the 
WaterLink service area.  The companion “Connection Facilities Intergovernmental Agreement” (R-67-
24) has also been presented for consideration, and upon approval will obligate the WaterLink 
communities to provide full funding for all activities associated with the extension of the DWC system 
to serve the WaterLink service area.  

The “WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement” attached hereto is the instrument which establishes the 
mechanism for fund deposits for the construction of the DWC infrastructure extensions (“WaterLink 
Connection Facilities”).  This document has been crafted to maintain continuity of approach with the 
previously approved Escrow Agreements which have been successfully utilized for Phase I and Phase 
II Engineering work.  Items of note include a requirement for a standing $30M balance, as well as an 
optional DWC line-of-credit in an amount not-to-exceed $21M, providing parity with the terms offered 
for the most recent Bartlett extension.   

The intention of the attached agreement is to ensure that adequate deposits are retained in the DWC-
controlled escrow account to cover the cost of all construction activities for which payment is expected 
to be obligated on a quarterly basis over the 3-year construction/commissioning schedule. 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the DWC Board approve the WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement 

 
                                              538 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-67-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING WATERLINK PROJECT ESCROW INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (collectively the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan 

water to their residents by connecting to the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and the Municipalities have negotiated a WaterLink Project Escrow 

Intergovernmental Agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, concurrently with the approval of the Escrow Agreement, the Commission is entering 

into an Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Development of Connection Facilities to Implement 

Water Service with the Municipalities for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, each Municipality and the Commission are also concurrently entering into an 

Intergovernmental Agreement Concerning Capital Cost Recovery Charge and a Water Purchase and Sale 

Contract for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the Commission and the public 

to complete the Project and enter into the Escrow Agreement with the Municipalities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the WaterLink Project Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and authorizes 

 
                                              539 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

the Chairman to execute the agreement on behalf of the DuPage Water Commission and to take whatever 

steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said agreement. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law.   

 
Aye 

 

Nay Absent Abstain 
Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT       

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 
 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
ATTEST:       James F. Zay, Chairman 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-67-24.docx 

 

 
                                              540 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

 
                                              541 of 570



 
                                              542 of 570



 
                                              543 of 570



 
                                              544 of 570



 
                                              545 of 570



 
                                              546 of 570



 
                                              547 of 570



 
                                              548 of 570



 
                                              549 of 570



 
                                              550 of 570



 
                                              551 of 570



 
                                              552 of 570



 
                                              553 of 570



 
                                              554 of 570



 
                                              555 of 570



 
                                              556 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  R-68-24 
Account:  N/A 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           PDM      -    -   PDM 

 

 

Date: 10/9/2024 

Description: Recommendation to Approve First Amendment to Second Escrow 
Agreement - WaterLink 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Administration  
 

In order to fund Phase I Engineering Activities for the WaterLink Project, an Intergovernmental Escrow 
Agreement was established, and funds were deposited by the WaterLink communities accordingly.  A 
similar approach was utilized to fund Phase II Engineering Activities (preparation of construction 
drawings prepared for bid), which is currently underway.  Funding for Phase II activities was provided 
in accordance with the associated Second Escrow Agreement. 

During the Phase II engineering activities, it was identified that a proposed IDOT project would precede 
the WaterLink project and would result in a new storm sewer which would be in conflict with future 
WaterLink watermain alignment.  After discussion with IDOT, a solution was developed which would 
result in a modification to the IDOT plans to construct the proposed storm sewer in a manner which 
would accommodate the future alignment for the proposed WaterLink pipeline.  This activity consists 
of modifying the proposed storm sewer material to be watermain quality, which permits the future 
water pipeline to be constructed within ten feet in a manner compliant with IEPA standards.   

This approach provides an opportunity to mitigate a potential future conflict at a significantly lower 
cost, by the DWC funding the cost of the IDOT storm sewer material revision, rather than revising the 
future watermain alignment.  However, the previously authorized Second Escrow Agreement 
approved funds for engineering services only.  The attached First Amendment to the Second Escrow 
Agreement permits funds to be utilized for the advanced construction activities as well (IDOT storm 
sewer).  The amendment has been approved by all three WaterLink communities. 

Recommended Motion: 

It is recommended that the First Amendment to the Second Escrow Agreement be approved. 

 
                                              557 of 570



| 1 of 3 | 
 

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION NO. R-68-24 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE WATERLINK SECOND ESCROW 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  

 

WHEREAS, the Commission was formed and exists pursuant to the Water Commission Act of 1985, 

70 ILCS 3720/0.01 et seq., and Division 135 of Article 11 of the Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 5/11-135-

1 et seq., for the purpose of securing an adequate source and supply of water for its customers; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of Montgomery (“Montgomery”), the Village of Oswego (“Oswego”) and 

the United City of Yorkville (“Yorkville”) (collectively the “Municipalities”) desire to supply Lake Michigan 

water to their residents by connecting to the Commission’s waterworks system (the “Project”); 

WHEREAS, the Commission previously entered into a contract with Lockwood, Andrews & 

Newman, Inc. for the second phase of general engineering services related to the Project (the “Phase 2 

Services”); and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and the Municipalities previously entered into a Second Escrow 

Intergovernmental Agreement (the “IGA”) to provide for the payment of Phase 2 Services; and 

WHEREAS, the Commission and the Municipalities desire and intend to amend the IGA to allow 

for the funds placed in escrow under the IGA to be utilized to also pay for costs related to and Illinois 

Department of Transportation project entitled IL Route 71 Gravity Storm Sewer Replacement, which will 

save significant engineering and construction costs for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water 

Commission as follows: 

SECTION ONE:  The Board of Commissioners of the DuPage Water Commission hereby approves 

the Amendment to the Second Escrow Intergovernmental Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and 

 
                                              558 of 570



| 2 of 3 | 
 

authorizes the Chairman to execute the agreement on behalf of the DuPage Water Commission and to 

take whatever steps necessary to effectuate the terms of said agreements. 

SECTION TWO: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect after passage and approval as 

required by law. 

 Aye 

 

Nay 

 

Absent Abstain 

Bouckaert, D.     

Cuzzone, N.      

Fennell, J.      

VACANT        

Novotny, D.      

Pruyn, J.      

Romano, K.     

Rush, K.     

Russo, D.     

Saverino, F.      

Suess, P.      

Van Vooren, D.      

Zay, J.      

 

ADOPTED THIS _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2024. 

 ________________________________ 
James F. Zay, Chairman 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Danna Mundall, Clerk 
Board/Resolutions/2024/R-8-24.docx 

 
                                              559 of 570



| 3 of 3 | 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 
                                              560 of 570



 
                                              561 of 570



 
                                              562 of 570



 
                                              563 of 570



 
                                              564 of 570



    

 

R E Q U E S T   F O R   B O A R D   A C T I O N 

| 1 of 1 | 

 

Resolution #:  N/A 
Account:  01-60-659000 $61,000.00 

Approvals:  Author / Manager /  Finance  /  Admin 

           JR   RCB  CAP  PDM 

 

 

Date: 9/6/2024 

Description: To Authorizing Approval of Requisition No. 79341 to Hexagon for Annual 
Maintenance Renewal 

Agenda Section:    Administration Committee 

Originating Department:    Systems & Information Technology  
 

Staff is requesting authorization to contract with Hexagon AB (formerly Infor) for software maintenance 
and licensing renewal in the amount of approximately $61,000.  

This expense is for the Enterprise Asset Management (EAM) system, the Commission’s Computerized 
Maintenance Management and Purchasing Management Systems, which has been utilized since 2008. 
The software maintenance and licensing renewal fee is due annually and in addition to licensing for 
each staff member, provides the Commission with telephone and online product support, patches, 
revision changes, and program updates. 

This expense is budgeted in the Annual Management Budget; Board approval is required due to the 
sole source service provider.  

Recommended Motion: 

Authorize the General Manager to approve Requisition No. 79341 in the amount of approximately 
$61,000 to Hexagon (formerly Infor). 
 

 
                                              565 of 570



Print Requisition

Purchase Requisition
        

Purchase 
Requisition

79341  [ Hexagon Annual Software Maintenance 2025 ] Requisition Date 09/18/2024

Date Approved

Status U [ Unfinished ] 
For Store DPS [ DuPage Pumping Station ] 
Originator 501-0045 [ JENESSA RODRIGUEZ ] 

Services
Line Task Plan Due date Quantity Units Unit Price Total

UOM
1 09/18/2024 1 60,176.89 60,176.89 USD

  

From Supplier HEXAGON [ Hexagon ] 
Work Order - 
Activity
RFQ
Quotation
Quotation Line

Total 60,176.89 USD

Approver
Comments
Date
Requisition Comments
RODRIGUEZ [09/18/2024 10:57]:
Annual
software
maintenance
fee
for
Hexagon
(formerly
Infor
EAM).



Copy
of
original
quote
is
on
the
Documents
tab.




Due
date:
Feb
2025


09/18/2024 11:00 DuPage Water Commission 1
 

                                              566 of 570



     

Quote Summary Information  
 

   

 

 

       

 

 

Quote:  0000122644  
 

 

 

 

   

    

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 

  
    

 

 

 
       

        
         

          

           
 

 

                        

 
      

   

:  US00161305      
 

 
  

Service Site    
 

 

     
      
 

Site Contact  
 

:  JENESSA RODRIGUEZ               
 

 

      

   

:   
 

 
 

Contact Phone 
 

 

 

:  rodriguez@dpwc.org 
 

 
  

Email Address 
 

 

      
    

:  600 E BUTTERFIELD RD                                          
 

 
 

Service 
Address 

 

  

  

                                                                 
 

    
  

                                                                 
 

      
   

:  ELMHURST       IL       60126 
 

 
 

City/State/Zip 
 

 

 

Country 
 

:  US                                                            
 

 

      

 

  
     

  

Customer ID 
 

:  DUPAGE WA/ELMHU       US00161305      
 

  

Bill To Cust 
 

:  DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION                                           
 

  

Bill To Address 
 

:  600 E BUTTERFIELD RD                                          
 

   

                                                                 
 

   

                                                                 
 

  

City/State/Zip 
 

:  ELMHURST       IL       60126 
 

   

:  US                                                            
 

  

Country 
 

   

:  DDCC550F0             
 

 

Policy Number 
 

 

   
 

PO Nbr 
 

  
 

:  RENEWAL QUOTE         
 

   
     

 

   

                        
    

Service Type 
 

:  RENEWAL Q   
 

              

                        
    

Period of Performance 
 

  

:  02/01/2025  -  01/31/2026 
 

              

                        

    

Billed on the 
 

:  1 st Day of each period 
 

              

          

$  60,176.89 
 

     
              

Total Contract Value :   
 

     
    

Period is defined as 
 

:  Every 12 Months 
 

         

                  

                  
                        
   

Previous Cust Code  
 

:                                  
 

              

                 

                 

       

*  Totals are exclusive of sales tax.   This is NOT AN INVOICE. 
 

    

                  
     

Previous Contract # 
 

:                   
 

       

                  

                        

                        
                   

  

Quote:  0000122644  
 

  

    

Accepted By  
COMPANY 

 

   

:   
 

  

           

   

By 
 

 

:   
 

  

      
           

   

Name/Title 
 

 

:   
 

  

      

           

        

:   
 

  
  

POC/Phone 
 
 

 

  

    
     
           

    

:   
 

  
 

POC Email 
 

  

   
           

Date 
 

  

:   
 

  

           
 

  

      

  

Messages 
 

All services provided hereunder are subject to ALI's Maintenance Service Contract Terms & 
Conditions (T's & C's ) for software (DDCC550F0) unless other specific Terms & Conditions apply 
and are referenced in the Policy Number field. Copies of the applicable T's & C's may be obtained 
online at T's & C's. * Totals are exclusive of sales tax - This is NOT AN INVOICE. For coverage 
code explanations, refer to the last page. 

 

 

  
 

 

      

   

Hexagon ALI 
 

 

 

 

    

Offered By Hexagon ALI 
 

      

    

:  ____________________________________ 
 

  

By 
 

      

    

:  Kelly Bergfalk 
 

  

Name 
     

      

    

:  kelly.bergfalk@hexagon.com 
 

  

Email 
     

      

  

Address 
 

:  305 Intergraph Way 
 
   Madison, AL  35758 
 
    

 

    

      

 

Issue Date 
 

 

:  09/18/2024 
 

      

Quotes are valid for 90 days from original date of issue. Quote acceptance after 90 
days is at the discretion of Hexagon ALI, a division of Intergraph Corporation. 

 

 

 

  

              

 
                                              567 of 570

http://ppmrpt/ReportServer?%2FOMSC%2FMAINTENANCE%20CONTRACTS%2FCONTRACT%20AND%20QUOTE%20REPORTS%2FServiceContract&CONTRACTNUMBER=0000122644%20&rs%3AParameterLanguage=
https://hexagonlegal.blob.core.windows.net/ali/CPQ%20T%26Cs/USA/Hexagon%20Software%20Maintenance%20Support%20Agreement%20DDCC550F0%2008_22.pdf


     

Quote Summary Information  
 

   

 

 

       

 

 

Quote:  0000122644  
 

 

 

 

   

    

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 

  
    

 

 

 
       

        
         

          

           
 

 

         

         
  

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Wednesday, September 18, 2024  08:10 AM 
 

 

Hexagon ALI 
 

  

         

 

   

Summary Of Service Quote      0000122644  
 

   

      

Item Number Description QTY Total Value Start Date End Date 

EAM00004 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition for SQL Database NU 
 

1 
 

$ 962.16 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00004 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition for SQL Database NU 
 

5 
 

$ 2,849.28 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00004 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition for SQL Database NU 
 

35 
 

$ 48,470.08 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00014 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Barcoding NU 
 

1 
 

$ 485.94 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00019 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Advanced Reporting Consumer NU 
 

1 
 

$ 75.24 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00019 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Advanced Reporting Consumer NU 
 

5 
 

$ 222.60 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00019 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Advanced Reporting Consumer NU 
 

35 
 

$ 4,950.36 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00035 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Requestor DA 
 

2 
 

$ 164.23 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

EAM00356 
 

HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Mobile DV 
 

3 
 

$ 1,997.00 
 

02/01/2025 01/31/2026 

Grand Total : 
 

 

 

 

$ 60,176.89 
 

  

 

 
 

 

 

 
                                              568 of 570



     

Quote Summary Information  
 

   

 

 

       

 

 

Quote:  0000122644  
 

 

 

 

   

    

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 

  
    

 

 

 
       

        
         

          

           
 

 

         

         
  

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Wednesday, September 18, 2024  08:10 AM 
 

 

Hexagon ALI 
 

  

         

 

LI Sts Item Number Description Serial Number Start Date End Date Coverage QTY Ext. Price Cancel 
Flag 

100 
 

EAM00019 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Advanced 
Reporting Consumer NU 

A109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 1 $ 75.24   

200 
 

EAM00019 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Advanced 
Reporting Consumer NU 

B109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 35 $ 4,950.36   

300 
 

EAM00014 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Barcoding 
NU 

C109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 1 $ 485.94   

500 
 

EAM00356 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Mobile DV E109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 3 $ 1,997.00   

600 
 

EAM00035 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Requestor 
DA 

F109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 2 $ 164.23   

700 
 

EAM00004 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition for SQL 
Database NU 

G109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 1 $ 962.16   

800 
 

EAM00004 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition for SQL 
Database NU 

H109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 35 $ 48,470.08   

900 
 

EAM00004 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition for SQL 
Database NU 

I109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 5 $ 2,849.28   

1000 
 

EAM00019 HxGN EAM Enterprise Edition Advanced 
Reporting Consumer NU 

J109497 02/01/2025 01/31/2026 PREM 5 $ 222.60   
 

 

 
                                              569 of 570



     

Quote Summary Information  
 

   

 

 

       

 

 

Quote:  0000122644  
 

 

 

 

   

    

DUPAGE WATER COMMISSION 
 

  
    

 

 

 
       

        
         

          

           
 

 

         

         
  

Page 1 of 4 
 

 

Wednesday, September 18, 2024  08:10 AM 
 

 

Hexagon ALI 
 

  

         

 

      

 

Quote Line Notes:     
 

   

      
 

 

 

 

      

 

Coverage Code Definitions:  
 

    

      

 

PREM: Premium Service. A monthly maintenance charge. Includes telephone support, bulletin board support and upgrades when made available by Hexagon ALI or a Third Party Software Vendor. 

 

  

      

 

 

 

 
                                              570 of 570


	2024-10-17  Administration Committee Agenda.pdf
	2024-09-19 Administration Committee Minutes.pdf
	O-7-24 ByLaw Update - Local Bidder.pdf
	R-55-24 Ford F-150 Disposal.pdf
	R-58-24 SPI Group Energy Consult.pdf
	R-60-24 Oswego Water Purch Agreement.pdf
	R-61-24 Oswego Capital Cost Recovery Agreement.pdf
	R-62-24 Yorkville Water Puchase Agreement.pdf
	R-63-24 Yorkville Capital Cost Recovery Agreement.pdf
	R-64-24 Montgomery Water Puchase Agreement.pdf
	R-65-24 Montgomery Capital Cost Recovery Agreement.pdf
	R-66-24 WaterLink Connection Facilities IGA.pdf
	R-67-24 WaterLink Project Escrow Agreement.pdf
	R-68-24 WaterLink Amend to Second Escrow Agreement.pdf
	RFBA - Hexagon Annual Renewal.pdf



